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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 12™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF WESTERN
CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE AT 2/6, SARAT
BOSE ROAD, KOLKATA -700020 ON SATURDAY, 30™ SEPTEMBER, 2023 AT 04.30 P.M. TO
TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: -

Ordinary Business:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt:

a.) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon: and

b.) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2023 and the Report of Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Sushila Sethia (DIN: 00268016) who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

To appoint M/s. D.C. Dharewa & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Registration No.:
322617E) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory
modification, amendment or enactment thereof, for the time being in force) pursuant to the recommendations
of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, M/s. D.C. Dharewa & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Kolkata (Firm Registration No.: 322617E) be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the
Company in place of M/s. J.K. Pandya & Associates., Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration No.
316071), the retiring statutory auditor, to hold the office for a term of five years from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
in the calendar year 2028 on such remuneration plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket
expenses in connection with the Audit as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the
Company and the Auditors.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be
and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary. expedient and
desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”
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Special Businesses:

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Munshi (DIN: 02749579) as Non- Executive Independent Director of the
Company for a second term of five consecutive years, in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act,
2013,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, read along with Schedule 1V to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) [including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], the Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Mr. Sunil Munshi
(DIN: 02749579), who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years commencing from September 3, 2018 upto September 2, 2023 (both days inclusive) and
who being eligible for re-appointment as an Independent Director has given his consent along with a
declaration that he meets the criteria for independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder and based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board
of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not
liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the
Company commencing from September 3, 2023 upto September 2, 2028 (both days inclusive), shall be
entitled to receive sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or any committees, thereof, as may be
determined by Board from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including its Committee therecf) and/or the
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.™

3. Approval to advance any loan/give guarantee/provide security u/s 185/186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185/186 and other applicable provisions, if any
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions as may be necessary,
approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as the “Board” which term shall include any Committee constituted by the Board or any person(s)
authorized by the Board to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this Resolution), for giving
loan(s) in one or more tranches including loan represented by way of book debt (the “Loan”) to, and/or
giving of guarantee(s), and/or providing of security(ies) in connection with any Loan taken/to be taken by
any entity which is a Subsidiary or Associate or Joint Venture or group entity of the Company or any other
person in which any of the Directors of the Company is deemed to be interested as specified in the
explanation to sub-section 2 of section 185 of the Act (collectively referred to as the “Entities™), of an
aggregate amount not exceeding Rs.150,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crores Only) beyond the
overall limits prescribed under sections mentioned above, in its absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the

X/K
e



WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LTD.

206 CENTRAL PLAZA, 2/6, SARAT BOSE ROAD, KOLKATA -700020
PHONES : 033-2485 8515/8520/8524/8526, FAX : 033-22458525
Email : info@westcong.com | CIN : U63090WB2011PLC161111

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 185 of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory
modification, amendment or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent by way of special
resolution of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to give loan to Western Kraft
& Paper Private Limited , a group Company, in which the directors of the Company are interested in terms of
Section 185 (2) of the Act, upto a limit not exceeding Rs. 30,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Crores only)
(including earlier loan provided) , in one or more tranches, for the principal business activities of the said
company, on such terms and conditions as the Board may consider fit and proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to take from time to time all
decisions and steps in respect of the above loans, guarantees, securities and investment(s) including the
timing, amount and other terms and conditions of such loans, gudrantees, securities and investment(s), do
such actions and deeds as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in
relation to the above and to do and perform all such other acts deeds and things as may be necessary in this
regard including but not limited to the delegation of powers to any director or committee or any other person
as it may deem fit subject to the provision of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, Executive Directors of the
Company and the Company Secretary, be and are hereby severally authorised to take such steps as may be
necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory or otherwise, in relation to the above and to all matters arising
out of and incidental thereto and to sign and to execute deeds, applications, documents and file returns with
Registrar of Companies, Kolkata that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to
this resolution.”

Date- 01* September, 2023 By order of the Board
Place: Kolkata For Western Carriers (India) Limited

Sapna Kochar
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
ICSI Membership Number: A56298

<
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Email : accounts@westcong.com
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NOTES:

6.

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of
himself and the proxy need not be a member. Proxies in order to be valid must be received by
the company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of meeting.

Members/proxies attending the meeting are requested to bring their duly filled admission/
attendance slips sent along with the notice of annual general meeting at the meeting.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are
advised to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative
to aftend and vote at the meeting.

Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating
to the Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

Members are requested to updating their e-mail address(es) with the Depository Participant(s)
(in case of Shares held in dematerialized form) or with Company or Link Intime Private
Limited (in case of Shares held in physical form).Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules framed thereunder, companies can serve
Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode to those Members who
have registered their e-mail address either with the Company or with the Depository
Participant(s). Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to register (or
update, in case of any change) their ¢-mail address with their Depository Participant(s), if not
already registered / updated and Members holding shares in physical form are requested to
register (or update, in case of any change) their e-mail.

In compliance with the MCA circulars, the notice of AGM and the annual report of the company
for the financial year 2022-23 are being sent only in electronic mode to the members whose
email addresses are registered with the company/ RTA or the depository participant(s).

A) For members holding shares in physical form, please send Scan copy of a signed request
letter mentioning your folio Number, complete address, email address to be registered Along
with scanned self-attested copy of pan card and any Document (such as driving license,
passport, bank statement, Adhaar) supporting the registered address of the member,

Through email to the company email address at accounts@westcong.com or to the RTA by
email.

B) for the members holding shares in demat form, please update your email address through

your respective depository participant(s). (any such updation effected by the DPs will
automatically reflect in the company / RTA’s subsequent records.

T
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

[Explanatory Statement In Pursuant To The Provision Of Section 102 Of The Companies Act, 2013]

Item No. 4:

Mr. Sunil Munshi (DIN: 02749579) was appointed as Independent Director on 03" September, 2019 as
an Independent Non-Executive Director, to hold office for a period of five consecutive vears, not liable to
retire by rotation. As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term of
up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing a
special resolution by the Company for another term of up to five consecutive years. Based on
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in terms of provisions of Sections
149, 150, 152, Schedule 1V and any other applicable provisions of the Act and, Mr. Sunil Munshi, being
eligible for re-appointment as an Independent Director and offering himself for re-appointment, is proposed
to be re-appointed as an Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from
September 3, 2023 upto September 2, 2028 (both days inclusive). Mr. Sunil Munshi has also confirmed in
writing that he meets the criteria for his reappointment as Independent Director for 2" term, also in the
opinion of the Board, Mr. Sunil Munshi fulfils the conditions specified in the Act, the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,2014.

The profile of Mr. Sunil Munshi is stated as under:

A) EDUCATIONAL.:
He holds a bachelor’s degree in science agriculture and animal husbandry from the Govind Ballabh Pant

Krishi Evam Praudyogik Vishwavidyalaya, Pantnagar, Uttarakhand.

B) PROFESSIONAL:

He has previously been associated with Andrew Yule & Co. Limited in various capacities including its
chairman and managing director. Presently working in Luxmi Tea Company Private Limited. He is also
registered with Independent Director's Databank.

He is a person of integrity, possesses the relevant expertise/ experience and also fulfills the conditions
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 for re-appointment as Independent Director and that his presence into
the Board would be of benefit to the Company and that it would enable to create an independent and fair
view to the decision-making process. Mr. Sunil Munshi is not related to any other Director of the Company.
A brief details of Mr. Sunil Munshi including nature of expertise, is provided in the annexure to the Notice,
pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Given his experience and the Company’s adherence to policy on Board Diversity, the Board considers it
desirable and in the interest of the Company to have Mr. Sunil Munshi on the Board of Directors of the
Company and accordingly recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Munshi as an Independent Director
of the Company for a period of five(5) consecutive years, with effect from 3% September, 2023, whose
period of office shall not be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation, as proposed in the
resolution no. 4 of the Notice convening the convening the Annual General Meeting,

Except Mr. Sunil Munshi, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their

relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the aforesaid resolution except
to the extent of their respective shareholdings in the Company.
®

f
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Item no.5:

Pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), a Company may advance any loan
including any loan represented by book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any security in connection
with any loan taken by any entity (said entity(ies) covered under the category of ‘a person in whom any of
the director of the Company is interested’ as specified in the explanation to Section 185(2)(b) of the
Companies Act, 2013, after passing a Special Resolution in the general meeting. It is proposed to make
loan(s) including loan represented by way of Book Debt to, and/or give guarantee(s) and/or provide
security(ies) in connection with any loan taken/to be taken by the Subsidiary Companies or Associate or
Joint Venture or group entity or any other person in whom any of the Director of the Company is deemed to
be interested as specified in the explanation to Section 185(2)(b) of the Act (collectively referred to as the
“Entities”), from time to time, for the purpose of capital expenditure of the projects and/or working capital
requirements including purchase of fixed assets as may be required from time to time for their principal
business activities and other matters connected and incidental thereto, within the limits as mentioned in the
Item no. 6 of the notice, The aggregate of overall loan provided, guarantee given to any company whether it
is associate, subsidiary company, group company or other Companies or Investment made under Sec.186 of
the Companies Act, 2013, shall not exceed Rs.150 crore at any point of time. The members may note that
Board of Directors would carefully evaluate the proposals and provide such loan, guarantee or security
through deployment of funds out of internal resources/accruals and/or any other appropriate sources, from
time to time, and the proposed loan shall be at such rate of interest as agreed by the parties in the best interest
of the Company and shall be used by the borrowing company for its principal business activities only.

Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited("WKPPL"), a private limited Company in which Directors of the
Company are interested (as defined under section 185 of the Act) has requested the Company to give loan to
them for the purpose of their business. WKPPL proposes to pay the loan off to the Company within 3-6
months. WKPPL has already been provided loan on earlier occasion pursuant to approval given by the
shareholders of the Company in Annual General Meeting held on 30" September, 2019, Pursuant to Section
185(2) of the Act, consent of the members of the Company by way of a special resolution is required for
providing the said loan to Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of
your Company seeks consent of the Members by way of a Special Resolution pursuant to Section 185 of the
Act.

The Board of Directors recommend the resolution set forth in Item no. 5 of the notice for your approval as a
Special Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned with or
interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution except to the extent of their shareholding in the
Company, if any.

Date: 01 September, 2023 By order of the Board
Place: Kolkata For Western Carriers (India) Limited

0 ¢ A
% _ Sapna Kochar

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
ICSI Membership Number: A56298
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Annexure to Annual General Meeting Notice

Brief details of Directors / Managing Director eligible for appointment / re — appointment vide item no. 2 and 4
pursuant to Secretarial Standard (SS - 2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Name of Director

Mrs. Sushila Sethia

Mr. Sunil Munshi

Date of Birth

November 6, 1955

August 22, 1957

DIN Number

(DIN: 00268016)

(DIN; 062749579)

Date of Appointment

23/03/2011

03/09/2018

Qualifications

Bachelor’s degree in arts from
Magadh University

Bachelor’s  degree  in

Praudyogik
Pantnagar, Uttarakhand.

Expertise in specific
Functional areas

She holds experience in the logistics
industry. She is involved in identification
and implementation of various CSR
projects.

He heolds expertise in the tea
industry and logistics industry.

List of Companies in which
outside directorship held

Indian Companies:

+ Kunal Rescurces Private Limited;
* Western Group Limited;

* Western Kraft and Paper Private
Limited,;

* Wescon Limited;

* Western Logistics Private Limited;
» Western Pest Solutions Private
Limited: and

* Western Skyvilla Private Limited.
Foreign Companies:

NIL

Indian Companies:

* Kalyani Tea Company Limited;
* Luxmi Tea Company Private
Limited; and

* Suvekam Enterprise Private
Limited. Foreign Companies:
NIL

Chairman/Member of the
committees of the Board of
other companies in which
he/she is a Director

NIL

NIL

Details of shareholding (Both
own or held by/for other
persons on a beneficial basis),
if any, in the Company

4200

NIL

Disclosure in terms of
Clause 49(1V)(G)(ia) of
the Listing Agreement :
Disclosure of
relationships between
directors inter-se

Spouse of Mr. Rajendra Sethia
Mother of Mr. Kanishka Sethia

NIL

g

science
agriculture and animal husbandry from
the Govind Ballabh Pant Krishi Evam
Vishwavidyalaya,
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Annexure to Annual General Meeting Notice

FORM NO. MGT-11
Proxy Form
{Pursuant 1o Section 105(6) of the Companies Act. 2013 and

Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 ]

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail ID
Folic No. / *DP-1D & Client
*Applicable for Investors holding shares in electronic form.
I/ We, being the member (s)of ......................... shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:
1. Name; Address:
E-mail Id: Signature:
Or falling him
2. Name: Address:
E-mail Id: Signature:
Or falling him
3. Name: Address: T
E-mail 1d: Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held on Saturday, the 30" September 2023 at 04:30 P.M. at 2/6 Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata -700020, and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as is/are indicated below:
** 1/We wish my/our above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:-
Ordinary/ Special Business:

Item No, | Resolution(s) For Against
1. To receive, consider and adopt:
a.) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon; and
b.) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the Report of Auditors thereon.
2, To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Sushila Sethia (DIN: 00268016) who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.
3. To appoint M/s. D.C. Dharewa & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata
(Firm Registration No.: 322617E) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.
4, Re-appointment of Mr, Sunil Munshi (DIN: 02749579) as Non- Executive
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five consecutive
years, in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.
5. Approval to advance any loan/give guarantee/provide security u/s 185/186 of
the Companies Act, 2013
Signed this .......... s Ay 0F cussmssna 2023, W}
Re.1
Revenue ]
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s);
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Annexure to Annual General Meeting Notice

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Annual General Meeting, Saturday, the 30" September 2023 at 04:30 P.M. at 2/6 Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata -
700020.

Name of the Shareholder
Address

Registered Folio/ DP ID &
Client ID

No of Shares held

Name of the Proxy /
Authorised Representative,
if any

I/ We hereby record my / our presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company 1o be held on
Saturday, the 30" September 2023 at 04:30 P.M. at 2/6 Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata -700020.

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy/ Authorised Representative

Note:

1}The Member/Proxy must bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting, duly completed and signed, and hand over the
same at the venue entrance.

2) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting, since further copies will not be
available.

3) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by Proxy, shall be
accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the Register of Members.

4) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preciude such member from attending in person and
voting at the meeting.
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Route Map for easy location of venue of the Annual General Meeting - 2/6, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata -700020.
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BOARD’S REPORT

THE MEMBERS
WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Western Carriers (India) Limited (“the Company™) are
pleased to present their 12® Annual Report along with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31* March 2023 (“financial year under review” or “financial
year 2022-2023").

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/ PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:
The financial results for the year ended 31* March, 2023 and the corresponding figures for the

last year are as under :

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Standalone Consolidated
Amount Amount Amount Amount

Particulars Financial Financial | Financial Financial

year 2022-| Year 2021- | year 2022-| Year 2021-

2023 2022 2023 2022
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 960.53 833.59 960.68 833.67
Provision for taxation
a. Current Tax
i) Current tax for current year 245.56 223.58 245.03 222.38
i) Current tax for the earlier years - - - -
(b.) Deferred Tax
(i) Deferred tax for current year (0.53) (1.20) (0.53) (1.20)
Profit after Tax 715.50 61121 715.65 611.29
Other Comprehensive Income
(a)ltems that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
i) Remeasurement of the employees (9.39) (2.38) (9.39) (2.58)

defined benefit plans

(ii)Income tax rclating to above items 2.36 0.65 2.36 0.65
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 2650.20 2033.07 2649 42 2032.14

DIVIDEND:

Further considering the growth opportunities in current business the Board has not recommended
any dividend against Equity Shares for the financial year 2022- 2023. ’

RESERVE & SURPLUS:

The Board has decided not to transfer any amount to the General Reserves. The profits earned
during the financial year have been retained in the Profit & Loss Account of the Company for
business and operations of the Company.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS:
The working of the company during the year under review was satisfactory as compared to
previous year. The company has earned profit before tax of 2 960.53 million as against previous
year of ¥ 833.59 million. Profit after tax has increased from 2611.21 million to  715.50 million
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primarily due to substantial increase in Turnover. The management hopes to achieve further
better results in next financial year.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There have been no changes in the nature of the business and operations of the Company
occurred during the financial year under review.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES:

In view of sale of 1010000 shares of Western Skyvilla Private Limited through a Board
Resolution passed on 08" May, 2023, accordingly, Western Skyvilla Private Limited ceases to be
the subsidiary of the Company with effect from May 9, 2023. However, the existence of the
subsidiary Company continued upte 31 March, 2023 the details of the subsidiary are annexed
and marked as form AQC-1 as Annexure “B”.

Further, pursuant to Sec.2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 by virtue of holding more than 20% of
shares, the company has three Associates Companies, the details of the same are annexed as per
prescribed form AOC-1 marked as Annexure “B”

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

In view of proposed initial public offering of the Equity shares of the company the following
Managerial Personnel has been designated for inclusion of their name in the Offer Document as
stated below:

S.No | Name I Designation

Key Managerial Personnel

Rajendra Sethia Chairman and Managing Director

Kanishka Sethia Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Officer

Sushila Sethia Whole-time Director

Dinesh Kumar Mantri Chief Financial Officer

Sapna Kochar Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

enior Management

Dinesh Kumar Mantri

Chief Financia! Officer

Sapna Kochar

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Ravi Kumar Bhaskar Menon

Vice President (Operations)

Selvam Sankaralingam

Deputy Vice President (Marketing)

Kanhaiya Lal Baid

Vice President (Operations)

P I P (R PN R P

Rajiv Ranjan Kumar

Deputy Vice President (Projects and Infra)

DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS:

The shareholders in their extra ordinary general meeting held on 26" May 2023 approved the
Initial Public Offer, accordingly the Company have filed the Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated
June 9, 2023 with SEBI, NSE and BSE.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
subsequent to the close the financial year 2022-23 till the date of this Report.
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10. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

11.

The composition of Board of Directors of your company is in conformity with the Companies
Act, 2013. As at the end of the Financial Year, the Board comprised of 6 Directors including
three Independent Directors. The details of changes take place during the year under review in
Directorship and Key Managerial Personnel are mentioned under:

Mrs. Sushila Sethia (DIN: 00268016) shall retire by rotation in the Annual General Meeting being
eligible offers herself for reappointment.

Mr. Rajendra Sethia, Managing Director who was also holding the post as Chief Financial Officer
has resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer with effect from 24th June, 2022.

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Mantri was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company by the
Board on 24th June, 2022.

Mrs. Rajni Mishra (DIN: 07706571) was appointed as the Additional Director by the Board on
31* August, 2022 was regularized and appointed as the Independent Director of the Company by
the approval of the shareholders accorded on the Annual General Meeting held on 30"
September, 2022 for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from 30" September 2022.

Mr. Kanishka Sethia, Whole Time Director of the Company was also appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer on 18" March, 2023.

Mr. Sunil Munshi (DIN: 02749579), who was appointed as the Independent Director of the
Company on 3rd September, 2018 whose period of office is liable to expire on 2nd September,
2023. On recommendation made by Nomination and Remuneration Committee being eligible for
re-appointment for a further period of 5 years, was re-appointed for the second term by the Board
of Directors on 01.09.2023 commencing from 3™ September 2023 to 2" September 2028 subject
to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting,

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
During the financial year 2022-23, Board of Directors of your Company met eleven (11) times on
the following dates:-

S.no. | Date of | Total no of Directors as on ATTENDANCE
meeting the date of meeting

Numbers of as % age of total

directors directors

attended
] 05/04/2022 5 5 100
2 20/05/2022 5 5 100
3 24/06/2022 5 5 100
4 26/07/2022 5 4 80
5 31/08/2022 5 5 100
6 13/10/2022 6 4 67
7 16/11/2022 6 6 100
8 26/12/2022 6 6 100
9 21/01/2023 6 5 83
10 18/03/2023 6 6 100
11 30/03/2023 6 6 100
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12.

13.

14,

The maximum interval between any two Board Meetings did not exceed 120 (One hundred and
twenty) days. The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are as follows:

SL | Name of the Director Board Meetings
No. Number of Meetings which | No.  of  meetings
Director was entitled to attend attended

1 Rajendra Sethia 11 10
2 Kanishka Sethia 11 11
3 Sushila Sethia 11 11
4 Bipradas Bhattacharjee 11 11
5 Sunil Munshi 11 8
6 | Rajni Mishra* 6 6

*Rajni Mishra joined the Board on 31* August 2022 as an Additional Director of the Company.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S):
All Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

COMPLAINCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Board confirms that it has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India to the extent applicable to the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in line
with the delegated authority. The following Committees constituted by the Board function
according to their respective roles and defined scope:

i. Audit Committee

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

iii, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

iv. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

v. Risk Management Committee

vi. [IPO Committee

Further, during the year under review, all recommendations made by the various committees have
been accepted by the Board.

(i) AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Board re-constituted the Audit Committee pursuant to a Board resolution dated December
26,2022. The members of the committee are Mr. Bipradas Bhattacharjee, Mr. Sunil Munshi and
Mrs. Rajni Mishra, Independent Director and Mr. Kanishka Sethia, Director of the Company.
During the year nine meetings of the Committee held the details of the same is as follows:

S.No. | Date Of | Total No. of Members as on Attendance i
Meeting the date of meeting |
Numbers of as % age of total ‘
menthers attended | members '
1 05/04/2022 3 3 100 |
2 20/05/2022 3 3 100 j
3 24/06/2022 3 3 100 ]
4 26/07/2022 3 3 100
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5 31/08/2022 3 3 100
6 16/11/2022 3 3 100
7 26/12/2022 3 3 100
8 18/03/2023 4 4 100
9 30/03/2023 4 4 100 |
SL | Name of the Committee | Audit Committee meetings details
No. | Members Number of Meetings which | No. of meetings attended
director was entitled to attend
i | Kanishka Sethia 9 9
2 | Bipradas Bhattacharjee 9 9
3 | Sunil Munshi 9 9
4 | Rajni Mishra* 2 2

* Rajni Mishra was inducted to the committee during the year under review.

(i) COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT
OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:

During the year under review the Board re-constituted the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are Bipradas
Bhattacharjee, Sunil Munshi and Rajni Mishra. During the year three meetings of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were convened and held as per details given below :

S.No. | Date of | Total No of Members as on ATTENDANCE
Meeting the date of meeting Numbers of members | as % age of total
attended members
1 24/06/2022 3 3 100
31/08/2022 3 3 100
3 18/03/2023 3 3 100
L | Name of the | Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings details
No. | Committee Members | Total no. of [Number of meetings which No. of meetings
meetings held Director was entitled to attend | attended
1 | Rajendra Sethia* 3 2 2
2 | Bipradas Bhattacharjee 3 3 3
3 | Sunil Munshi 3 3 3
4 | Rajnit Mishra* 3 ! I

* Rajendra Sethia resigned from the membership of the Committee and Rajni Mishra was
inducted into the Committee,

(iiily CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, constitution of which is detailed
as under. In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the
Company has adopted a CSR policy.

The average net profit of the company during last three financial years stood at Rs. 650.29million.
Thereby, the Company is required to spend Rs. 13.00million, being 2% of average net profit of
preceding three financial years towards CSR activities for the year 2022-23. The details of
amount spent and unspent contribution towards CSR activities are stated in “Annexure A”.
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Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) and Rule 4(1) and Rule 4(2) of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021 (*Rules’) provides
that entities undertaking Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) to file E Form CSR-1 for all their
CSR projects from 1 April 2021. Accordingly contribution made through Implementing Agencies
have filed the required Form and registered themselves with MCA.

Further pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Rule every Company
covered under the provision of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 shall furnish a report
on its Corporate Social Responsibility in the form CSR -2 to the Registrar of Companies for the
preceding financial year 2021-2022. Accordingly, the Company has filed Form No. CSR-2 with
MCA for the Financial Year 2020-21.

Further the company has re-constituted the CSR Committee pursuant to the resolution dated
December 26,2022. The Committee has taken appropriate steps for contribution in Corporate
Social Responsibility activities as per policy prepared for same.

During the year meeting of the CSR Committee were convened and held as per details given
below:

S.no. | Date of | Total no of members as on Attendance
meeting the date of meeting Numbers of As % age of
members attended total members
1 31/08/2022 3 3 100

(iv) STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Regulations™),
every listed company and a company which consists of more than one thousand shareholders,
debenture-holders, deposit-holders and any other security holders at any time during a financial
year shall constitute a Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Since, the company is proposing an initial public offer, during the year under review, the Board
has also constituted the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee pursuant to a resolution dated
January 21,2023, The members of the Stakeholders” Relationship Committee are Bipradas
Bhattacharjee, Sunil Munshi and Rajendra Sethia. The scope and functions of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee are in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act and
Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. No meeting was held during the year under
review.

(v) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE :

The provisions relating to corporate governance prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations
will be applicable to the Company immediately upon listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock
Exchanges, in view of the proposed listing the Risk Management Committee was constituted by
the Board pursuant to a resolution dated January 21, 2023 and the terms of reference were also
approved by the Board. The members of the Committee are Rajni Mishra (Independent Director),
Kanishka Sethia (Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Officer), and Dinesh Kumar Mantri
(Chief Financial Officer). The Board also approved the Risk Management Policy in terms with
Regulation 17 (9) and Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. No meeting was held during the year under review.
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15,

16.

17.

18.

19.

(v) IPO COMMITTEE:

As the Company proposes to undertake an initial public offering of its equity shares. For the
purposes of the Offer and in the interest of the efficiency the Board decided to constitute a
committee of directors of the Board to undertake such activities as are authorized by the Board in
connection with the offer. Accordingly, the Board constitute an IPO committee and approved its
terms of reference pursuant to the resolution dated December 26, 2022.The members of the [PO
Committee are Mr. Rajendra Sethia, Mr, Kanishka Sethia and Mrs. Sushila Sethia. No meeting of
the IPO Committee was held during the year under review.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:
During the year under review, no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or court
or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operation in future.

COMPOUNDING APPLICATION UNDER SECTION 441 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

The Company has filed an Application for Compounding ws 441 of the Companies Act, 2013
before the Regional Director, Eastern Region for violation of section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of Appointment of Mr. Kanishka Sethia as Whole time Director despite the fact
that he was already holding office of Managing Director in any other listed Public Company. The
said Application is pending for hearing in the matter.

CHANGES IN SHARES CAPITAL:

(i} Sub-Division of the face value of the Equity Shares:
In view of proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) and listing of Shares, the Company has
obtained members consent in the extra ordinary general meeting of the Company held on
31% March, 2023 for sub-division of its Share Capital from Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 5/- for

each share.

(i) Increase in Authorised Share Capital: The authorised Share Capital of the Company
was increase from 2 60 crore to Z 65 Crore during the year under review and existing
Capital Clause V of the Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the Company, was
amended accordingly with the approval of the Shareholders in the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on 315 March 2023,

CHANGE IN ISIN NUMBER OF THE EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY:

Pursuant to the sub- division of the face value Company has taken Corporate Action for the
equity shares held in dematerialized form, accordingly the NSDL and CDSL issued the new ISIN
in lieu of the old one for fully paid up equity shares with face valueZ5/-.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:

Pursuant to the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, and as per Rule
9A further issue of securities in dematerialized form by unlisted company as such the company
has obtained the connectivity from both depositories CDSL and NSDL for admission of its
shares Equity Shares in dematerialized form.

The entire shares of the Company have been dematerialized.

The new ISIN is INEOCJF01024 for equity shares with face value of Z5/-.
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20. REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT:
As the Company proposes to undertake an initial public offering of its equity shares, in view of
the same Link Intime India Private Limited was appointed as the registrars and transfer agents of
the Company (Common Agency for Share Registry Work) in place of Maheshwari Datamatics

Private Limited.

Contact details of the Registrar and Transfer Agent is;
Link Intime India Private Limited
C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083.

21. ACCOUNTING METHOD:
The Annual Audited Consolidated and Standalone Financial Statements of the Company are
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”).The Annual Audited
Consolidated and Standalone Financial Statements of the Company are prepared on a going-
concern basis. The management evaluates accounting standards including any revision thereon on
ongoing basis.

22. STATUTORY AUDITORS:
M/s Jai Pandya and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Membership No.316071E) was earlier
appointed for second term as Statutory auditor of the company pursuant to Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013, whose term of office is expiring in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

The Board has recommended to appeint M/s. D. C Dharewa & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Kolkata (ICAI Registration No -FRN 322617E), as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a
term of 5 (Five) year starting from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting to hold the
office until the conclusion of Annual General Meeting of the company to be held in the calendar
year 2028 subject to the approval of Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Further the Company has received a certificate from M/s. D. C Dharewa & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Kolkata (ICAI Registration No -FRN 322617E) to the effect their appointment, if
made, would be within the limits prescribed under section 141(3) of The Companies Act, 2013,

23. AUDITORS' REPORT:

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification.

24, SECRETARIAL AUDIT:
In compliance to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Rules, 2014, M/s. Rohit
Singhi & Co., Company Secretaries, Kolkata, ACS No. 43484 was appointed as Secretarial
Auditors to conduct secretarial Audit for the Financial year 2022-23.

Since M/s. Rohit Singht & Co., Company Secretaries, Kolkata, ACS No. 43484 was not a peer
reviewed firm till 31¥ March, 2023, thus could not conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company

for Financial Year 2022-23.

The Board has then appointed Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga, Practicing Company Secretary, COP-
2948 in their meeting held on 27™ June 2023, to conduct the audit for Financial Year 2022-23.
The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by the Company Secretary in practice for the year ended
31% March, 2023 annexed herewith marked as Annexure-C to the report.
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Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga, practicing Company Secretary has been further appointed to conduct
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24,

25. COST AUDITORS:
The Central Government has not specified Maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of the Company.

26. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:
The Company has in place adequate Internai Financial Control with reference to the Financial
Statements, such control has been assessed during the year. The Company recognizes that any
internal control framework, further the Company has appointed M/s Genie Mensch Consultants,
Chartered Accountants to conduct the regular internal Audit and review processes ensure that
such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis.

27. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12):
During the financial year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of

fraud to the Board of Directors of the Company.

28. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors of your Company has framed and implemented the
Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Act and it is implemented through Whistleblower Policy to
encourage the employees to report to the Audit Committee about suspected unethical behaviours,
malpractices, wrongful conduct, fraud violation of the company’s policy including code of ethics
and conduct, violation of law or questionable accounting or auditing matters by any
employees/Director in the company without any fear of retaliation, to build and strengthen a
culture of transparency and trust in the organization, disclosure of alleged wrongful conduct to the
team members of the whistle blower policy and also makes a provision for direct access to the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

29. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The MCA vide the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2021 dated,
March, 05, 2021, substituted Rule 12 of the rules, the Extract of the Annual Return in the
FormMGT-9 is no more required to be attached. However, copy of annual return will be uploaded
in the website of the company once filed with Registrar of Companies. The website of the
company: www.western-carriers.com.

30. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SEC 186 :
The loan given and investment made by the company during the year are within the prescribed
limit w's 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.The information under Section 186 of the Act relating
to investments, loans, etc. as at the yearend has been furnished in notes to the Financial

Statements.

31. DEPOSIT:
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

32. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:
The Company has not entered into any contract u/s 188 cf the Companies Act,2013.
However, the Company has entered a few transactions which are at arms length basis and not
considered as material transactions, hence, the Form AQC-2 is not applicable.



WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LTD.
206 CENTRAL PLAZA, 2/6, SARAT BOSE ROAD, KOLKATA -700020

PHONES : 033-2485 8519/8520/8524/8525, FAX : 033-22458525

Email :info@westcong.com | CIN: UB30S0WB2011PLC161111

33.DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
ATWORKPLACEPREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at its workplace and has adopted a
Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition& Redressal) Act, 2013 {“POSH
Act”) to provide a safe, secure and enabling environment, free from sexual harassment. Internal
Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainges) are covered under this
policy. During the financial year under review and pursuant to Rule 8(5)(x) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has complied with the provisions relating to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (“ICC”) under the POSH Act.

During the financial year 2022-2023, no complaint with allegations of sexual harassment has
been received by the Internal Complaints Committee of the Company.

34.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:
Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo:

(A) Conservation of Energy:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy- During the year under review, adequate
measures have been initiated to reduce energy consumption. Reascnable efforts are made for
conservation of electric energy used in office, increase fuel efficiency of vehicles deployed by the
Company.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy- The operations of
your Company are not energy intensive.

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments -During the year under review,
the Company has not incurred capital investment on energy conservation equipments.

(B) Technology absorption:

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption; — Most of our vehicles are GPS enabled and
can be tracked and traced by our team at any given point with our 24X7 track and trace service.
Our fleet is equipped with FASTag for tolls.

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution; — Not Applicable

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)- Not Applicable

(a) the details of technology imported; — None

(b) the year of import; — Not Applicable

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; — Not Applicable

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption — Not applicable has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof; and
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3s.

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. — During the financial year 2022-23,
the Company did not incur any expenses towards Research and Development activities.

(C) Foreign exchange Earnings and Outgo

The details of foreign exchange earnings or out flow during the year under review are as follows:
Foreign Exchange Earnings: ¥ NIL (Previous year- NIL)

Foreign Exchange Out flow: % 56.30 Million (Previous year- NIL)

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
(IEPF):

The Company is not required to transfer any amount to IEPF since there is no unpaid dividend

or any other dues lying unpaid for more than seven years as stated under section 124 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

36. REMUNERATION TO MANAGERIAL PERSONAL:

37.

The remuneration paid to Managing Director and Whole time Directors or any other employee is
less than 1.02 Cr P.A. during the year. Therefore, the provisions for disclosure under Rule 5 Sub
Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Rule 2014, is
not applicable to the Company. The company is unlisted public company, separate disclosure
under rule 5 is not applicable.

DIRECTORS'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to provisions of clause (c) of Sub- section (3) of Section 134read with Section 134(5) of
Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ responsibility statement, it is hereby confirmed
that:-

a.  in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year March 31, 2023 ,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

b.  the director have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss
of the company for that date;

c. the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d.  the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a geing concern basis;

¢.  the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

. the directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

38. INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

No application or proceeding was made or pending against the Company under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the vear under review.
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39. VARIATION IN VALUATION:
During the year under review, there was no instance of one-time settlement with any bank or
financial institution necessitating disclosure or reporting in respect of difference in valuation done

by the Company.

40, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Directors place on record their sincere thanks and appreciation to Government authorities,
Regulatory bodies and all stakeholders including Banks, Financial institutions, Customers,
Agents, Truck suppliers /operators, of the company.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors also take this opportunity to express their gratitude for the
valuable services rendered by the employees at all levels towards the continuous growth of the
Company.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board

2/6 Sarat Bose Road, For Western Carriers (India) Limited

2" Floor,

Kolkata - 700 02 - RPN
olkata 020 L e e ‘,/T P

Dated: ¢1°' September, 2023 Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia

Place: Kolkata Chairman &Managing Director  Whole time Director

DIN:00267974 DIN:00267232
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Annexure — “A”

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY:

St
No

Particulars

Details

A brief outline of the Company’s policy
including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and
a reference to the CSR policy and
projects.

At Western Carriers (India) Ltd, we are committed to
economic, social and cultural growth of the underprivileged
in an equitable and sustainable manner in the peripheral areas
around its branch offices, sites and corporate office. Arising
from this the focus areas that have emerged are Education,
Health and sanitation, livelthood enhancement projects, and
promotion of art, culture and heritage.

To attain our objective, vision and mission our approach will
be that CSR activities are being undertaken by the business
in multiple ways-independently, jointly with Trusts/
Societies, partnership with an external social body/NGO.

The CSR policy of the Company is being uploaded on the
website on the Company: www,western-carriers.com.

The Composition of the CSR Committee

Sl.Name of [Designation |[Number of [Number of
No/[Director / meetings of meetings of
Nature  of CSR CSR
Directorship Committee |[Committee
held during [attended
the year during the
lyear
1| Rajendra 1 1
Sethia Chairman of
(Managing  the CSR
Director) Committee
Z | Bipradas 1 I
BhattacharjeeMember of
(Independent the CSR
Director) Committee
3 {Sunil Munshi [Member of 1 I
(Independent [the CSR
Director) Committee

*The CSR Committee was re-constituted by the Board of
Directors pursuant to resolution dated 26" December 2022,
Mrs. Sushila Sethia was appointed as the Chairman of the
Committee. Mr. Rajendra Sethia, Mr. Bipradas Bhattacharjee
and Mr. Sunil Munshi are the members of Committee.
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3. | Average net profit of the company for last
three financial Years i.efor, 2019-20,
2020-2021, 2021-2022(Amount in 2

Millions)

2013 are as under:

Net Profit for the year2019-203532.51

Net Profit for the year 2020-213584.76

Net Profit for the year 2021-22%833.59
Total %1950.87

Average net profit for last 3 yearsZ650.29

Calculation as per Section 135 (5) of the Companies Act,

4. | Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent
of the amount as in item 3 above)
(Amount in T Millions)

T13.00(2% of average net profit)

year

5. | Details of CSR spent during the financial

As per the table enclosed below.,

6. | Total amount spent in the F.Y. 2022-
2023(including ¥9.61Carried Forward
unspent amount}(Amount in T Millions)

10

7. | Amount unspent, if any; (as per details
of carried forward CSR obligation)

212,61

8 Manner in which the amount spent during
the financial year.(including Carried
Forward unspent amount)

As per the table enclosed below.

Details of CSR Expenditure for the financial vear ended 31°* March, 2022:

D (2) 3 (C)] 6] (6} €] 8 )
51 CSR project | Sectorin Projects/progr | Amt. Amt spent on | Cumuta | Mode Mode of Implementation -
No. | or activity which  hms (1) local outlay the projects tive of Through Implementing Agency
identified the hrea or other (budget) | or programs | expendi | Implem
project [2) specify the | project or | Sub-heads: ture entation
is btatc and program | (1) Direct upto - Direct
covered [istrict where | wise (Tin | expenditure | the (Yes/No | Name CSR
project or Millions) | on projects reporti | ). Registration
programs was or programs | ng number.
undertaken (2) Overhead | period
1. Various 1.5 NO Terahpanth | CSR00006105
CSR Professional
Activitie Forum
S
2, |Promotion of | Support | Bhilwara, 8.5 NO Jan Jagrati | CSR00006903
Girl child Educatio | Rajasthan SevarthSans
Education and |n than
education for |For
underprivilege | Children
d sections of
society
Total 10
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Details of carried forward CSR obligation:

(Amount in ¥ Millions)

Opening unspent amount of CSR contribution brought forward 39.61
Add: For the F.Y 2022-23Prescribed CSR Expenditure 213.00
i.e. 2% of Net Profit

Total amount due for spent upto 31.3.2023 Z22.61
Less: Amount spent during the year (2 10.00)
Amount due for spent and carried forward as on 01.04.2023 212.61

** Details of the amount spent out of the due unspent CSR obligation of Rs. 12.61 during the
reporting period i.e. after the end of financial year 2022-2023 to the date of signing of this
report (from 01.04.2023 to 01.09.2023 ) is Rs. 3 million through CSR registered Implementing
Agency named Jan Jagrati SevarthSansthan,

Registered Office: By Order of the Board

2/6 Sarat Bose Road, For Western Carriers (India) Limited

2™ Floor,

Kolkata — 700 020 s ‘
Dated: 01° September, 2023 Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Place: Kolkata Chairman &Managing Director ~ Whole time Director

DIN:00267974 DIN:00267232
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Annexure “B”

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule S of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate
companies or joint ventures

Part A Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated

Name of the subsidiary: Western Skyvilla Private Limited

The date since when subsidiary was acquired: 14/03/2020

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s

-

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the

otherwise)
1. Sl No. 1
2,
3.
4.
reporting period — NA
5.
case of foreign subsidiaries -NA
6. Share capital- ¥12.2
7. Reserves and surplus- (30.22)
8. Total assets- 102.76
9. Total Liabilities- ¥ 102.76
10. Investments- NIL
11. Turnover- Z 0.58 (other income)
12. Profit before taxation- ¥ 0.01
13. Provision for taxation- NIL
14. Profit after taxation- ¥ 0.01
15. Proposed Dividend- NIL
16.

Extent of shareholding (in percentage)- 82.79%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations- NIL

2.Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NIL. However,
Western Skyvilla Private Limited ceases to be the subsidiary of the Company with

effect from 09""May 2023.
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Annuxure “B”
Part B Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures
(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Name of Associates or Joint SUCCESS SMP PROPERTIES F.M CARRIERS

Ventures SUPPLIERS PVT PVT. LTD. PRIVATE LIMITED
LTD.

1. Latest audited Balance 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2023

Sheet Date

2.Shares of Associate or Joint [ 1700000 Equity Share| 1515 Equity Share of] 45835 Equity Share of

Ventures held by the company of 2 10/- each Z2100/- each Z10/- each

on the year end

3.Amount of Investment in 217 24.82 211

Associates or Joint Venture

4.Extent of Holding (in 33.33% 22.97% 31.43%

percentage)

5.Description of how there is | There is significant There is significant | There is significant

significant influence influence due to % influence due to % | influence due to % age

age of Share Holding | age of Share Holding| of Share Holding

6.Reason why the N.A N.A N.A
associate/joint venture is not

consolidated

7. Net worth attributable to Z12.70 T(0.03) 27.46

shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

8. Profit or Loss for the year | 20.12 20.01 20.32
i. Considered in Consolidation | 20.04 20.00 Z0.10
ii. Not Considered in 20.08 Z0.01 20.22

Consolidation

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Western Carriers (India) Limited

e -
Patand
Dated: 01°' September, 2023 Raj¢ndra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Place: Kolkata Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director

DIN:00267974 DIN:00267232
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH. 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
2/6 SARAT BOSE ROAD 2ND FLOOR,
KOLKATA WB 700020

[ have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED (hereinafter called

the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, [ hereby report that in my opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 3157, March, 2023 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

[ have examined the books, papers and other records maintained by WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA)
LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, according to the provisions

of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent

(ii)Foreign Exchange ‘ .
tment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

of Foreign Direct Inves
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;(to the extent
applicable to the Company),

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

(iv)

India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):-
ASHOK KUMAR
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS-2699 & CP.2948

Office : 1, Crooked Lane, 2nd Floor, Room # 212, Kolkata - 700 069, W.B., India




Gt The Secuitios and 1-vel: mee Boand ot tndin Qusie and 1 ebing of Debt Seenpitie Regpnlabions, 200K,
Not applicable, sinee the company has not issuedl any debit seeurities as per (Issue and Listing of Deht
Securities) Regulagions, 2008;

O T o opion and as identitied and informed by the Man; ement, the Company has adeguate o stems
W omonitor and ensure complianee ginchiding the process of renewalifresh/pending appheation, wilh
Government Aathorities), the following laws are specifically applicable to the ¢ DINPANY.

@) :\n'(prt\'cnlim\ And Control of pollution) Act, 1981
(Mihe Indian Carriage of Goods by Road Act, 2007.
(<1 The Multi Modal Transportation of Goods Act, 1993,

(d) The Food Safety and Standard Act. 2006 read with FSS (Licensing and Registration of Food
Business) Regulation. 2011,

() Customs Act. 1962 and related regulations
(D) The Motor Vehicles Act, 1988;
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India as amended from
time to time,

(ii)  The Company has complied with the terms and conditions, set forth by the lending bank -
financial institution at the time of availing any facility

(iii)  The Company has conducted Annual General Meeting on 30"September, 2022through physical
mode;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act. Rules.
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above:

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors.
Non-Executive Directors and KMP. The following changes has occurred in Directors and KMP.

(— " ,- (_x e

~ < ___\,L:___a
ASHOK KUMAR DAGA

Practicing Company Secretary
FCS-2099 & CP.2048



SLNO | NAME OF DIRECTOR

PARTICULARS OF CHANGE

i MR. DINESH KUMAR MANTRI APPOINTED  AS  CHIEF  FINANCIAL
OFFICER W.ELF., 24 JUNE, 2022.

; sl MR. RAJENDRA SETHIA RESIGNED FROM THE POST OF CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER W.E.F., 24™ JUNE,
2022 AND CONTINUED AS CHAIRMAN
AND MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY.

o MRS. RAJNI MISHRA APPOINTED AS ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR:
i ON 315T AUGUST, 2022 AND WAS]|
: FURTHER APPOINTED ASINDEPENDENT'
DIRECTOR AT ANNUAL GENERAL:
E MEETING HELD ON 30™ SEPTEMBER,
l 2022. o
3. MR. KANISHKA SETHIA APPOINTED AS CHIEF EXECUTIVE'
; OFFICER W.E.F., 18™ MARCH, 2023.

I hereby further report that the following special events have also occurred during the year:

The Company has filed an Application for Compounding u/s 441 of the Companies Act, 2013 before the
Central Government for offence committed by the company for Appointment of MR. KANISHKA
SETHIA as Whole time Director despite the fact that he was already holding office of Managing Director
any other listed Public Company under section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. The said Application is
pending for hearing in the matter.

The Company has increased its Authorized Share Capital from Rs.60 crore to Rs.65 Crore during the year
under review and has complied with the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has Sub-Divided the face value of the Equity Shares from Rs.10/- each to face value of Rs.3
each and has complied with the necessary provisions of The Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 26th December, 2022 have accorded their in-principal
approval to undertake an Initial Public Offer (IPO) and offer for sale of Equity Shares and also approved the
Uniform Listing Agreement to be entered into between the Company and the Stock Exchanges.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through with the consent of members’ and recorded as part of the minutes.

ﬁ ) -
~ CTHuf ¢ a
s ‘ -/c{’_—

ASHOK KUMAR DAGA
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS-2099 & CP-20d438



1 further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size

and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and gundelines.

e vali ALY
Place: KOLKATA = (7;%'
Date: 01,09.2023 ASHOK KUMAR DAGA

(Practicing Company Secretary)
FCS No.2699, C P No: 2948
UDIN: F002699E000915644

ASHOK KUMAR DAGA

Practicing Company Secretary
FCS-2699 & CP-2948
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Western Carriers (India) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Western
Carriers (India) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and A;iditor’s
Report thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

5. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
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6. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and
statement of changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.
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10.As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

11.We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

12.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

13.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in

P

aragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

14.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Other

Comprehensive Income), the Statement Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on

(g)

March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023
has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on March
31, 2023 on its standalone financial statements- refer note 32 to the
standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

1ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

v. The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is in
compliance with section 123 of the Act.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from
April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

(] K P ﬂuw«&m

J.K. PANDYA
PARTNER
Membership Number: 052678

Kolkata, August 28, 2023
UDIN: 2205 2638 BGYZV OF 503
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Western Carriers (India) Limited

Refer to the paragraph 14(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Western Carriers (India) Limited on the standalone financial statements as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statement under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of Western Carriers (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to
be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements was established and malntamed and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects. !
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4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

(r"rK.PMAGM

J.K. PANDYA
PARTNER
Membership Number: 052678

Kolkata, August 28, 2023
UDIN: 23052698 B6HLYZVOF50%
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report:

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s report of even date to the
members of Western Carriers (India) Limited on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2023.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that -

i. (a)

i (a)

i. (b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-
in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment,
capital work-in-progress and right-of-use assets so as to cover all the items once
every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property,
Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

Based on our examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed /
conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the
financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in
progress and are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder. ;
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The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause
(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at
points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the quarterly returns and statements comprising (book
debt statements, credit monitoring arrangement reports, statements on ageing
analysis of the debtors/other receivables) filed by the Company with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the audited / unaudited books of
account of the Company, of the respective quarters, except for the quarter ended
March 31, 2023 whereby the reported amount of trade receivables (billed) were
higher by 31.75 millions.:

The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans during the
year and details of which are given below:

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans during
the year and details of which are given below:

Amount (Rs. In Millions)

T
T o ‘ efe Advances in nature of
loans
A. Aggregate amount granted / J
provided during the year: 5
- Subsidiaries 1 Nil Nil
- Joint Ventures Nil Nil
- Associates Nil Nil
- Others 14.05 Nil
B. Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above
cases:
- Subsidiaries Nil Nil
- Joint Ventures f Nil Nil
- Associates Nil Nil
- Others 14.05 Nil

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to any other entity
during the year.
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(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned loans and
advances in the nature of loans, during the year are, in our opinion, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of
interest are regular as per stipulation.

(d) In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by
the Company, there is no amount overdue for more than 90 days at the
balance sheet date.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has
fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans

granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

() The Company has granted Loans or advances in the nature of loans which are
repayable on demand, details of which are given below —

Amount (Rs. In Millions)

: All Related
Particulars . Promoters :
Parties Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of
loans 186.94 Nil 139.63
- Repayable on demand (A)

Percentage of loans/advances in nature of

loans to the total loans 100% Nil 74.69%

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees
and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted
any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, to the extent
applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the
Company by the Central Government under section 148(1
2013
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(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company
have generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2023, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2023, on account of disputes are given below -
teviod 1o Forum where
Nature of the | Amount (Rs. which the :
Name of the Statute e Dispute
Dues In millions) Amount :
, Pending
Relates to
: Commissioner
Income Tax Act, income tax Of Income Tax
1961 demand Ll B (Appeals),
Kolkata

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-
term purposes by the Company.
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iX. (e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries and associates.

ix. (f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries or associate companies.

x. (a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

x. (b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. (b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and up to the date of this report.

xi. (c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year (and up to the date of this report).

Xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

Xiil. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards

xiv. (a) -In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

xv. (a) The reports of the internal auditor for the period under audit have been
considered by us.

XVi. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(a) The Company is not required to be registered under the provisions of section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking / Financial / Housing
Finance during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause (xvi)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year orin the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has not transferred the
unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount at the balance sheet date out
of the amounts that was required to be spent during the year, to a fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), till the date of our report.
However, the time period for such transfer as permitted under the second proviso to
135(5) of the Act, has not elapsed till the date of our report.
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xx. (b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required
to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6)
of section 135 of Companies Act.

XXi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of
audit of standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the

said clause has been included in this report.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

U_‘\(‘P ﬂwztaa

J.K. PANDYA
PARTNER
Membership Number: 052678

Kolkata, August 28, 2023
UDIN: 22052638B6Y2V0 3503



WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(I) Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 553.49 363.41
(b) Capital work in progress 4 66.41 23.63
(c) Right of use assets 5 44.62 3741
(d) Goodwill 6 310.00 310.00
(e) Other Intangible assets 6 1.19 1.45
(f) Investments in subsidiaries and associates 7 4292 4292
(g) Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 747 747
(ii) Other financial assets 9 140.43 256.91
(h) Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 2095 27.06
(1) Other non-current assets 11 5.00 5.00
(J) Income-tax Assets (Net) 12 123.00 4956
Total Non-current assets 1,324.48 1,124,82
(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 13 3.896.56 3,113.89
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 13.45 24.74
(iii) Other bank balances 15 182.08 107.25
(1v) Loans 16 186.94 170.34
(v) Other financial assets 9 46.10 55.84
(b) Other current assets 11 307.05 252.22
Total current assets 4,632.18 3,724.28
Total Assets 5,956.66 4,849.10
(I1) Equity and Liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17 393.50 393.50
(b) Other equity 18 2,791.29 2,181.19
Total equity 3,184.79 2,574.69
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 19 304.94 170.55
(i1) Lease liabilities 5 28.25 25.88
(b) Long-term provisions 21 39.50 22.04
Total Non-current liabilities 372.69 218.47
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 1,716.37 1,280.39
(ii) Lease liabilities 5 20.55 15.24
(iii) Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 37.38 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 50291 649.50
(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 78.57 61.01
(b) Short-term provisions 21 3.25 2.68
(c) Other current liabilities 23 40.15 47.12
Total current liabilities 2.399.18 &055.94
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,956.66 4,849.10
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 1-50

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071 E

( 'K*?Mgﬁ

J.K. PANDYA

Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 28, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

3 __,_.—-_____.—-——'——"‘éqstc‘:'—

ajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
anaging Director Whole time Director
IN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232
9” e 94}1@ ‘\W
Dinesh Kumar Mantri Sapna Kochar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

i Niates For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(1) Revenue from operations 24 16,330.63 14,708.75
(2) Other income 25 47.65 49.10
(3) Total Income (1) +(2) 16,378.28 14,757.85
(4) Expenscs
(a) Operational expenses 26 14.213.42 12,804.09
(b) Employee benefits expense 27 417.52 370.37
(¢) Finance costs 28 15111 139.20
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 152.65 116.00
(€) Other expenses 30 483.05 494.60
Total Expenses (4) 15,417.75 13,924.26
(5) Profit before tax (3) - (4) 960.53 833.59
(6) Tax Expense
(a) Current tax 10
(i) Current tax for current year 245.56 22358
(i1) Current tax for the carlier years - -
(b) Deferred tax 10
(1) Deferred tax for current year (0.53) (1.20)
Total tax expense (6) 245.03 222.38
(7) Profit for the year (5) - (6) 715.50 611.21
(8) Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(1) Remeasurement of the employees defined benefit plans (9.39) (2.58)
(11) Income tax relating to above items 2.36 (.65
Total other comprehensive income (8) (7.03) (1.93)
(9) Total comprehensive income for the year (7 + 8) 708.47 609.28
(10) Earnings per equity share (Face value of share of Rs. § each) 31
Basic earnings per share 9.09 T
Diluted carnings per share 9.09 .77
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 1-50 - -
This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
IFirm Registration Number : 3160711 ‘
: e 45@4 ve
Rajjendra Sethia anishka Sethia
Managing Director Whole time Dircctor
(]- 'K . P ﬂn,v\/(a,‘ DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232
%t antn Eww
LK. PANDYA Dinesh Kumar Mantri Sapna Kochar
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Sccretary

Membership Number: 52678 Membership Number: A56298

Kolkata, August 28. 2023




'WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for year ended March 31, 2023

(Amounts in Rs, Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(A) Cash flows from operating activities :

Net Profit before taxes 960.53 833.59

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 152.65 116.00

Finance cosls 15111 139.20

Loss on sale of Property. Plant and Equipment 0.02 -

Loss on redemption of preference shares - 2349

Allowance for doubtful debts 1.42 1.07

Interest Income (31.48) (35.33)
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,234.25 1,078.02
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current financial assets (0.40) 003

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets - (4.03)

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (784.09) (391.44)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current financial assets 9.74 -

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets (54.83) (57.50)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other non-current financial liabilities - -

Increase/(Decrease) in long-term provisions 8.07 4.79

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (109.21) (129.81)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other current financial liabilities 39.99 (2.09)

Increase/(Decrease) in short-lerm provisions 0.57 041

Increase/(Decrease) in other current habilities (6.97) 9.34
Cash generated from operations 337.12 307.70

Direct Taxes paid (319.00) (256.13)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activitices 18.12 51.57

(B) Cash flows from investing activities :

Payments for acquisition of Property. plant and equipments (384.53) (98.76)

Payments for acquisition of Intangible assets (0.29) (0.30)

Proceeds from sale of Property. plant and equipments 0.02

Loans given / repaid (net) (16.60) 110.33

Interest Received 31.48 35.33

Acquisition of investment in associate - (11.00)

Term deposits (placed) / matured (net) 42.05 (15.52)
Net cash Mlows from/ (used in) investing activities (327.87) 20.08

(C) Cash flows from financing activities :

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings 33341 35.50

Repayment of Long-term borrowings (140.43) (102.06)

Repayment of preference shares - (150.00)

Proceeds from / (repayment) of short-term borrowings 377.39 280.08

Principal lcase payments (22.43) (15.10)

Interest paid on lease obligations (5.01) (4.73)

Payment ol interest on Prelerence Shares (1.50)

Dividend Paid (98.37)

Other interest payments (146.10) (123.04)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities 298.46 (80.85)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (11.29) (9.20)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 24.74 33.94
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13.45 24.74
Components of Cash and Cash equivalents

Asat As at

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Cash in hand 3.48 5.71

Balances with bank in current accounts 9.97 19.03

Total 13.45 24.74




Notes:
“The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indireet method which preseribed under Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

Refer to note 36 for disclosure related to paragraph 44 A as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of cash flows.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 1-50

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Direct

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 3160711 . - o
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Rajendra Sethia nishka Sethia

g . P Mdnaging Director Whole time Director
K i W DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232

JK PANDYA ] PP R 4*‘- .\w
Partner \ T '),- I)ines_h_](ums_tr .\Ix.a_ntri Sapna Kochar

Membership Number: 52678 N e Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Kolkata. August 28, 2023 Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

‘Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

. Equity Share Capital

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notes Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2021 ET 393.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 17 393.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 17 393.50

b. Other Equity S
Reserves & Surplus orrd
FYOCI
Notes Retatned Capiia! Remeasurment of Equity Total
Ekiig Redemption |employee defined | ot ruments
Reserve benefits

Balance as at April 1, 2021 1,571.86 - 0.37 (0.32) 1,571.91
Profit for the vear 18 611.21 - - - 611.21
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 18 (1.93) - (1.93)
Transfer to capital redemphion reserve (150.00) 150.00 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,033.07 150,00 (1.56) (0.32) 218119
Profit for the year 715.50 = . . TI5.50
Other Comprehensive Income for the vear - - (7.03) - (7.03)
ividend Paid* (98.37 (98.37)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve 18 - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,650.20 150,00 (8.59) (0.32)] 2,791.29

*The interim dividend patd during the year ended March 31, 2023 is 2250 per Ordinary share (face value 210 each, fully paid-up).

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of the standalone financial statements

This is the Standalone Statement of Changes n Equity referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number = 316071 E

q*K‘Pﬂm«Aﬁq

J.K. PANDYA

Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 28, 2023

1 -50

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

haging Director
IN: 00267974

Ra cnm‘/

uuahf*"

Dinesh Kumar Mantri
Chief Financial Officer

é- Stea.. .
Kanishka Sethia

Whole time Director
DIN: 00267232
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Sapna Kochar
Company Secreary

Membership Number: AS6298



WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

- Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 4: Property, plant and equipment (Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Office Heavy Heavy Office Computer Motor Other Futaitiive Electrical Total
Building Equipment Vehicles Appliances Vehicles Machinery Equipment
Cost
Balance at April 1, 2021 - 353.96 820.17 11,13 §.27 34.08 20.13 16.92 5.34 1,270.60
Additions 192 2151 8.47 0.79 1.50 3N 55.07 0.63 0.34 99 96
Disposals - - - ' % z x : 4
Balance at March 31, 2022 1.92 381.47 828.64 11.92 9.77 38.41 75.20 17.55 5.08 1,370.56
Additions - 111.70 91.33 0.99 1.51 047 108.30 321 1.81 319.32
Disposals - - - (0.13) - - - - - (0.13)
Balance at March 31, 2023 1.92 493.17 919.97 12.78 11.28 38.88 183.50 20.76 7.49 1,689.75

Accumulated depreciation

Balance a1 April 1, 2021 - 169.39 676.99 9.32 6.39 25.17 6.02 11.88 2.87 908.00
Depreciation expense 0.06 36.41 49.76 0.82 1.49 333 5.22 1.38 0.68 99.15
Disposals - - - . - » - - - -

Balance at March 31, 2022 0.06 205.80 726.75 10.14 7.88 28.50 11.24 13.23 3.58 1,007.15
Depreciation expense 0.09 46 .45 55.39 099 1.52 296 1997 118 0.70 12920
Disposals - - - (0.09) - - - - - (0.09)

Balance at March 31, 2023 0.15 252.25 782.14 10.99 9.40 31.46 31.21 14.41 4.25 1,136.20

Carrying amount
Balance at March 31, 2022 1.86 175.67 101.89 1.78 1.89 9.91 63.90 4.32 213 363,41
Balance at March 31, 2023 1.77 240,92 137.83 1.79 1.88 7.42 152.29 6.35 3.24 553.49
Note:
() The Company has chosen to apply Ind AS retrospectively to determine the carrying amount ol its property, plant and equipment as on the date of transition i.e. April 1, 2020,

(b) Refer Note 19 for details of security against borrowings

Movement in Capital work in progress and its age analysis
(i) Movement in Capital work in progress

3T, 2023 2022
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Balance at the beginning of the year 23.63 6.20
Additions during the vear 6641 2363
Capitalised during the year (23.03) (6.20)
Balance at the end of the year 66,41 23.63
L)

(ii) Age analysis of Capital work in progress

As at March 31, 2023
v Jess than More tha ;
Particulars L Ito2years | 2to3 years Tere e Total
1 year 3 years
Heavy Vehicles 66.41 - - z 66,41
As at March 31, 2022
@ .ess thy More thi .
Particulars Hess tin 1to 2 years 2to 3 years lore thun F'otal
1 vear : Y 3 years
Heavy Vehicles 2363 . - . 2363

(i11) Thre are no project whose completion are ovedue or has exceeded its cost, as compared to its original plan for both the year.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

2.1

2.2
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24

General Information
Western Carriers (India) Limited (the Company) having CIN: U63090WB2011PLCI61111 is a public limited company. The Company is incorporated and
domiciled in India under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is located at 206, Central Plaza, 2/6, Sarat

Bose Road, Kolkata, West Bengal-700020

The Company is a major player in the Indian logistics industry and engaged in providing single, multimodal and other transportation services, warehousing and
other ancilliary services.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements comply with all material aspect of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act.
2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rule, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act

Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-ofT to
the nearest Millions upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured al fair values

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlyihg assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause material adjustment Lo the carrying amounts ol assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are provided below

(a) Property. nlant and cauinment and intangible assets — useful lives
Property. plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived

afier determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the
Company’s assets arc determined by the Management at the time the assel is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at the end of each reporting period
The lives are based on historical experience with similar assels

(b) Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obhigation are determined using actuarial valuations An actuarial valuation
mvolves making various assumpuons that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate: future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved i the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date

(¢) Lease classification, termination and renewal option of leases

Ind AS 116, Leases requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option 1o extend or terminate the
lease, il the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that the Company will continue the lease beyond non-cancellable period and whether any options to extend or
terminate the contract will be exercised. In cvaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the terminating the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Company's operations taking in to
account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suntable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed 1o ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no material
changes are required to lease period relating o the existing lease contracts.
(d) Impairment of Goodwill

The Company estimates the value in usc of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows afler considering current cconomic conditions and
trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed
using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Refer Note 6 for additional details

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and habilities

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs
and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values. then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties 1o
support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS. including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be
Fair values are categorised into different levels in @ fair value hierarchy based on the nputs used in the valuation techniques as follows

- Level 1" quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities

- Level 20 inputs other than quoted prices cluded in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (1.¢., derived
from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of
an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises transfer between levels of the fair value hlLi’dILh\ at
the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
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3.2

Significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification :

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the standalone balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified current when it is

(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cvele:

(b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

(¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seutle a hability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A lability 1s classified current when

(a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operatina cvcle:

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading:

(¢) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or

(d) There 1s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the habihity for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other habilities as non-current
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Financial instruments

(a) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recogmised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or [inancial lability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(b

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial asscts

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost,

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or Fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCT)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their imtial recognition. except if and n the period the Company changes its business model for managing

financial assets

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘'FVOCT') il it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL

= the asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and cash flows from sales; and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On
imitial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as al
FVTPL il deing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise

Equity instruments are always classified fair value through profit and loss. except in cases where the Company has elected an irrevocable option of designating

the same as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL :

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost: :

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss

Financial assets at FYOCI :
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income i.c., subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income. Any dividend received on such instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial hability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading,
or it 1s a derivative or it 1s designated as such on initial recogmition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses. including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
Interest expense and foreign exchange pains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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(¢) Derecognition
Financial assets:
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights (o receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.
If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assels recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred asscts. the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this
case, @ new financial lability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial habihty
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss

(d

~—

Impairment of financial assets
Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.
For financial assets (apart from trade receivables that do not constitute of financing transaction) whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial

recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is
recognised if the credit risk of the financial asset has significantly increased since initial recognition.

o

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally

enforceable right to set ofT the amounts and it intends either to settle theni on a net basis or Lo realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to

which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. Such revenue is recognised upon the Company's performance of its contractual
obligations and on satisfying all the following conditions: -

(1) Parties to the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform their respective obligations;

(2) Such contract has specified the respective rights and obligations of the parties in connection with the transfer of goods or rendering of services (hereinafier the
“Transfer™).

(3) Such contract contains specific payment terms in relation to the Transfer,

(4) Such contract has a commercial nature. namely, it will change the nisk. tme distribution or amount of the Company’s future cash Now;

(5) The Company is likely to recover the consideration 1t s entitled to for the Transter to customers

Revenue is recognised when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration. The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of all
indirect taxes and net of returns and discounts.

(a) Rendering of services

The Company generates revenue from services to its customers such as providing freight and other transportation services, warchousing contracts ranging from
a few months to a few vears. Centain accessorial services may be provided to customers under their transportation contracts, such as unloading and other
incidental services. The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied over lime as customers simultancously receive and consume the benefits of the
Company’s services. The contracts contain a single performance obligation, as the distinet services provided remain substantially the same over time and
possess the same pattern of transfer. The transaction price is based on the consideration specified in the contract with the customer and contains fixed and
variable consideration. In general, the fixed component of a contract represents amounts for facility and equipment costs incurred to satisfy the performance
obligation and 1s recognized over the term of the contract

In the case of transportation services, performance obligation is created when a customer under a transportation contract submits a shipment note for the
transport of goods from origin to destination. These performance obligations are satisfied over the period as the shipments move from origin to destination and
revenue is recognized proportionally as a shipment moves and the related costs arc recognized as incurred. Performance obligations are shori-lerm, with transit
days less than one week Generally, customers are billed upon completion of shipment. and remit payment according to approved payment terms The
Company recognizes revenue on a net basis when the Company does not control the specific services.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue carned from inspection services because the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion
of the inspection. Upon completion of the inspection, the amount recognised as coritract assets is reclassified to trade receivables

(b

—

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that 1s unconditional is due from the customer (i¢.. only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due) Refer 1o accounting policies for financial assets for initial and subsequent measurements

Contract liabilities

A contract liability 1s recognised if a payment 1s received or a payment 1s due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer) '

Government grants .
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the

grant relates 1o an expense item. it 1s recognised as income on a svstematic basis over the periods that the related costs. for which it is intend ompensate, are
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3.6

3.7

Income Taxes

Current tax
Current tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 1o

compule the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company or companies within the Company
operates and generates laxable income

Current tax relating 1o items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect 1o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate :

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred 1ax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sulticient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised 10
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the Lax rates that are expecied 1o apply 1 the year when the asset 1s realised or the hability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profitor loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCl or directly in equity

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities relate 10 income taxes levied by the same taxation authority

Foreign currencies
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency-of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances e
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company in its functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for

recognition

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Dilferences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss unless they relates to the qualifying cash flow hedges

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions
In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related assel, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary hability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary hability arising from the advance consideration I there ard'muluple payments or receipts in advance. the Company determines the transaction
L - . . v il 4

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cosl, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, i any. Construction in progress 1s stated at
cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of Property, plant and equipment includes the costs directly atiributable to the acquisition or constructions of assets, or replacing parts of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for qualifying assets. if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a Scparate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with them will fow 10 the Company and the cost of the item can measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred :

Depreciation is provided on written down value method in the manner and on the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013
Depreciation on addition / deduction is calculated pro-rata from/to the month of addition / deduction.

Advance given for acquisition / construction of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets are presented as "Capital Advance” under Other Non Current
Assets. :

The assets in the process of construction or acquisition but not ready for management's intended use are included under Capital Work in progress

An item of propenty. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal (i.¢ . at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively. 1
appropriate
The estimated usctul lives of the assets considered by the Company 1s stated hereunder

Assets Description Useful Life in Years )
OfTice Building 60

Heavy Equipment 13

Heavy Vehicles 6

Office Appliances 5

Computer 3

Other Machinery 15 ;
Motor Cycle. Scooter 10 Ured Accow ”
Motor Vehicles § S
Furniture 10 !

Electrical Liquipments 103




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

3.8 Leases

3.9

3.10

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is. if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of ime in exchange for consideration

The Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except lor shont-lerm leases and leases ol low-value assets. The Company
recogmises lease habilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured a1 cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease labilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets

Ifownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value g L.uammu:s The lease payments also include payments of penalties for terminating the lease, iff
the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised.as L\pun\n (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses 1ts incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. [n addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities 1s remeasured if there i1s a modification, a change in the lease term. a
change in the lease payments. :

The Company's lease obligations are presented on the face of the Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 10 its short-term leases (i.¢., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rcwards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental

income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature
Imuial direet costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist

of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds

Intangible assets i
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost Subscquent 1o mitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally penerated intangibles. excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure 15 reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economie hife (5 years for computer software) and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible assct may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each reporting period.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (1.¢.. at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the assel (calculated as the difTerence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
At cach balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there 15 any
indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
reviewed in order 1o determine the extent of impairment loss, if' any. Where the asset does not generale cash flows that are independent from other assets, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 1o which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash Nows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrving value of an
assel exceeds its recoverable amount

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogmised for the
assel (or cash generating unit) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately
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Provisions and contingencics
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Il the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due Lo the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it s either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying ¢conomic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot

Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and shori-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of

three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabiliies for short-term employee benefits that are a\pccu.d to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee related liabilities under other financial liabilities in balance sheet

Post - employment benefits

The Tiability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obllg,allon Is calculated annually at year end by actuaries using the projected unit credit
method

The present value of the defined benefit obligation 15 determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market vields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation

The net interest cost is caleulated by applyving the discount rate 1o the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost s
included in “Employee Benefits Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in the period in which they occur.
directly in other comprehensive income. These are included in retained camings in the statement of changes 1n equity and in the balance sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past
service cost

Defined contribution plan

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident fund as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an assel to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic carmings per share is caleulated by dividing:
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during, the linancial year
(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted carnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic carnings per share to take into account:
the afler income tax effect of interest and other [inancing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost direetly attributable 1o the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as reduction. net of tas from

the proceeds

Cash dividend
The Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per
the corporate laws of India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity

Segment reporting .
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM'). The CODM is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Amendment to Ind AS 1 *Presentation of Financial Instruments”

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
material if, together with other information can reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes "
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the

scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 t'rccugnuiun exemption) so that 1t no longer applies Lo transactions that. on nitial
recognition, give risc to equal taxable and deducuble emporary differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impgct in its
financial statements

Amendment to Ind AS 8 ",\ccnunlmg l'Olltll‘b. C h.mp,us in \ccuunlmg l-\llmau'\ and Errors™

been rcplau.d \\lth a defimtion oI accounllng estimates. Under thc new ddmmon auoummg estimates are “monetary ;mﬁuﬂly n Iln.u stajements lhuL dﬂ.‘
subject to measurement uncertainty” Entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates if du.mmllng, &5 reqlure items il
financial statements to be measured i a way that involves measurement uncertamty. The Company does not expect this .uumNmmr 1 h.m any \lgnm.nu fa\p.;

in its financial statements \ ',/
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Note 5: Right of use assets

(Amounts in Rs, Millions, unless stated otherwise)

The Company has taken on lease various offices. warchouses other spaces for its uses. Rental contracts typically range from 1 year to 10 years.
pan) p ) 3 )

A. The changes in the carrying value of Right of Use assets :
Particulars Buildings
Gross Block
Balance as at April 1, 2021 65.80
Additions during the year 0.87
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 66.73
Additions during the vear 30.11
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31,2023 96.8+4 |
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 13.00
Charge for the year 16.32
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 29.32
Charge for the vear 2290
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 52.22 ]
Carrying Amount
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 37.41 l
44.62

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

The aggregate depreciation expense on RoU assets is included under depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B Movement in lease liabilities :
Particulars Lease Obligations
Balance as at April 1, 2021 3533
Additions during the year 0.87
Deletions during the year =
IFinance cost accrued during the year 4,73
Payvment of lcase labilitics (19.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 41.12
Additions during the year 30.11
Deletions during the year -
Interest on lease obligation 5.01
Payment of lease labilitics (27.44)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 48.80

¢ The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at the year end:

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Current 20.55 15.24
Non-current 28.25 25.88
Total 48.80 41.12

With the exception of short-term leases and leases ol low-value underlying assets. cach lease is reflected on the Standalone Balance Sheet as a
right of use asset and a lease liability. Payments made for short term leases and leases ol low-value are expensed on a straight line basis over the

leasc term.
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

D The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at the year end on undiscounted basis are as follows:
As at As at

- )y ¢ « 3
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
L.ess than one year 24.06 18.46
One to five years 30.40 29.18
More than five years - -
Total 54.46 47.64
I'he Company does not face a significant liquidity risk regards 10 its leasc liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligation
related to the lease liabilities as and when they fall due,

£ The amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:
S For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars J )

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Depreciation expense of right-ol-use assets 22.90 16.32
Interest expense on lease liabilities 5.01 1.73
Rent expense - short-term lease and leases of low value assets 30.90 26.60
Total 58.81 47.65

I Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options arc included in various leases. These are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the
asscts used in the Company's operations. The majority of the extension and termination options held are exercisable by the Company and not by
the respective lessor. '

G Discounting rate

The Company has used the incremental borrowing rate of 10% (FY 2021-22: 10%) to determine the lease liabilities.
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Note 6: Goodwill and other intangible assets

Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill | Trademark Computer Total
% Software
Cost / Deemed cost
Balance at April 1, 2021 310.00 - 2.92 2.92
Additions - - 0.30 0.30
Disposals - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 310.00 - 3.22 3.22
Additions - - 0.29 0.29
Disposals = - 5 2
Balance at March 31, 2023 310.00 - 3.51 3.51
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at April 1. 2021 - - 1.24 1.24
Amortisation expense - - 0.53 0.53
Disposals 2 . I
Balance at March 31, 2022 - - | kAT 1.77
Amortisation expense - - 0.55 0.55
Disposals - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 - - 2,32 2.32
Carrying amount
Balance at March 31, 2022 310.00 - 1.45 1.45
Balance at March 31, 2023 310.00 - 1.19 1.19

* below the rounding off amount
Note:
The goodwill is attributable to purchase of the business from M/s Western Carriers. erstwhile proprictorship firm owned by Mr. Rajendra Sethia,
The goodwill was tested for impairment as al March 31, 2023, and on that basis the recoverable amount was determined to be higher than the

carrying amount of goodwill.
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Note 7: Investments in subsidiaries and associates

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
Carried at cost
In Subsidary

March 31, 2023

Western Skyvilla Private Limited 1010 1010

1.010,000 (As a1 March 31, 2022 - 1,010,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach. fullv paid up,
In associates

Success Suppliers Private Limited 17.00 17.00

1,700,000 (As at March 31, 2022 - 1,700,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up:

SMP Properties Private Limited 4.82 182

1.515 (As at March 31,2022 - 1,515 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid up

I° M Carriers Private Limited

45,835 (As at March 31, 2021 - 45,835) equily shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up; 11.00 11.00
Total investments in subsidiary and associates 42.92 42.92
Aggregate carrying amount of unguoted investments 42.92 42,92
Note 8: Investments

As at As at

March 31, 2022

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)

In Others
Investments designated at fair value through OCI
Western Apartment Private Limited
790.000 (As at March 31, 2022 - 790,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully pad up:

Total Non-current investment

7.47

7.47

Aggregate carrving amount of unquoted investments

7.47

7.47

Note 9: Other financial assets

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

(i) Non current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits 944 904

(b) Fixed deposits maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date# 130.99 247.87
Total Other financial assets - non current 140.43 256.91
(i1) Current

(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits 46.10 55.84
Total Other financial assets - current 46.10 55.84
#Deposits balances i the account are not due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date are primanily placed as security with banks as collateral and margim money

for bank guarantee of Rs. 130.99 Millions (As a1 March 31, 2022 Rs 199 54 Millions )

Note 10: Income Taxes

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(a) Analysis of Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(i) Amount recognised in profit or loss
(a) Current tax lor the current vear 245,56 17358
(b) Delerred tax for the current year (0.53) (1.20)
245,03 222.38
(ii) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
(a) Deferred tax for the current year 2.36 0.65
2.36 0.65
247.39 223.03
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Accounting Profit before tax 960.53 833.59
At India’s statutory Income tax rate ol 23 168% (March 31, 2022: 25 168%) 241.75 204 80
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (1axable) in calculating taxable income 3.28 12,58
Income tax expense reported 245.03 222.38

I'he Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 20416

Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax for the year ended on March 31, 2023 onwards and remeasured their deferred 1ax bal

in the said section

he rate prescribed
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

FY 2022-23 |
Deferred tax Deferred tax
Ba]an.c'e at e-xpense! e_xpensel Baliice dt &l
beginning of]| (income) (income)
s = of the year
the year recognised in recognised in (D) = (A-B-C)
(A) profit and loss ocCl1
(B) (€)
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 5.23 (6.82) - 12.05
Provisions for employee benefits 6.22 (2.18) (2.36) 10.76
Lease liabilities 10.35 (1.93) - 12.28
Fair value changes of investments 0.11 - - 0.11
Allowance for credit losses 11.10 (0.36) - 11.46
Total deferred tax assets 33.01 (11.29) (2.36) 46.66 |
Deferred tax liabilities
Right of Use Assets (5.95) 10.76 - (16.71)
Total deferred tax liabilities (5.95) 10.76 - (16.71)
Net deferred tax assets 27.06 (0.53) (2.36) 29.95
FY 2021-22 |
Deferred tax Deferred tax
Ba_lan.ce at e.xpense.' e‘xpensr.f Balaiiosabei
beginning of (income) (income)
FEge gl of the year
the year recognised in recognised in (D)= (A-B-C)
(A) profit and loss 0oCl1
(B) (€)
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 9.38 4.16 - 5.23
Provisions for employee benefits 4.26 (1.31) (0.65) 6.22
Lease liabilities 13.93 3.58 - 10.35
Fair value changes of investments 0.11 - 0.11
Allowance for credit losses 10.83 (0.27) - 11.10
Total deferred tax assets 38.51 6.16 (0.65) 33.01
Deferred tax liabilities
Right of Use Assets (13.30) _QES()J - (5.95)
Total deferred tax liabilities (13.30) (7.36) - (5.95)
Net deferred tax assets 25.21 (1.20) (0.65) 27.06
Note 11: Other Assets
As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Non Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Capital Advances 5.00 5.00
Total Other non current assets 5.00 5.00
(ii) Current

(a) Advances to port authorities and other service providers 2.79 7.99

(b) GST receivables 143.88 103.21

(c) Advances to employees 26.04 25.29

(d) Other advances 134.34 115.73
Total Other current assets 307.05 252.22
Note 12: Income-tax Assets (Net)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Advance taxes (including tax deducted at sources)
[Net of provisions for taxes Rs. 245.56 Millions, As at March 31, 2022: Rs. 223.58 Millions] 123.00 49.56
Total income-tax assets (Net) 123.00 49.56
Note 13: Trade receivables
As at As at

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Trade receivables, unsecured, considered good 3,896.56 3,113.89
Trade receivables, having significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables, credit impaired 45.52 44.10
3,942.08 3,157.99
Less: Allowances for expected credit losses (45.52) (44.10)
Total Trade receivables 3,896.56 3,113.89
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Disclosure of contract balances as per Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Contract balances

‘Trade receivable - Billed 2,769.32 2.737.41
I'rade receivable - Unbilled 1,172,76 420.58
T'otal Contract balances 3,942.08 3,157.99
There is no contract habilities (Advance from customers)
Ageing of trade receivables
As at March 31, 2023
Nfgo birackét Unbilled Less than 6 | 6 months | 1 year to 2 2 years to 3 More than 3 Total
months to | year years years years
Undisputed trade receivables - considered pood 1,172.76 2,620.22 72.325 10.06 518 879 3.898 26
Undisputed trade receivables —considered doubttul - - - -
Disputed trade recervables considered good - - . - - 43.82 13.82
Disputed trade recervables considered doubtful - - - - - -
Total Ageing of receivables 1,172.76 2,629.22 72.25 10.06 5.18 52.61 3,942.08
As at March 31, 2022
Age bracket Unbilled Less than 6 | 6 months | 1 yearto2 2yearstod More than 3 Total
months to 1 year years years years
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 420.58 2,637.44 44.38 6.66 2.53 2,58 311417
Undisputed trade receivables —considered doubtful - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables considered pood - - - - - 43.82 1382
Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -
Total Ageing of receivables 420.58 2,637.44 44.38 6.66 2.53 46.40 3,157.99 |

Note:

(@) The ageing has been determined from the date they were invoiced 1o the customers. Refer Note 37 on credit risk for more details.

(b) Movement in allowances for expected credit loss

(¢} No trade receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Company, or from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, director or member

For the year For the yvear
ended ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Allowances for expected credit losses at the beginming of the vear 44.10 13.03
Allowances created during the vear [Refer note 30] 1.42 107
Allowances for expected credit losses at the end of the year 45.52 HIT
Note 14: Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Cash in hand 348 571
Balances with bank in current accounts 9.97 19.03
Balances with bank in deposit accounts* - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 13.45 24.74
*Onginal maturity of less than three months
Note 15: Other bank balances
Asat As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Balances with bank in deposit accountsi

182.08

107 25

T'otal other bank balances

182.08

107.25

#Deposits balances in the account are due for realisation within 12 months from the balance-sheet date, but original maturity of’ more than three months are primanly placed as security
with banks as collateral and margin money for bank guarantee of Rs. 182.09 Millions (As at March 31, 2022: Rs 103 98 Millions ).
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 16: Loans

As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
(i) Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Loans 1o body corporates and others 186.94 170.34
Total loan - current 186.94 170.34
Information relating to Loans granted to related parties repavable on demand

As at Asal
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanding 139.68 129.31
Percentage to the total Loans and Advances in the nature of loans 74.72% 75.91%

Note 16.1

I'he Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person or enlity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons/ entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*ultimate beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate

Beneficiaries

Note 16.2

The Company has not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding party”) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party (ulimate
beneficiaries). or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Note 16.3
Disclosure as per section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Outstanding Balance

Asal As al
Party Name~ March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Aditi Industries Limited 10.81 10.00
3. Daulat Limited 15.13 14.00
Gipsy Management PrivateLimited 66.63 5177
Lucky Prime Dealer Pvt Ltd 10.53
Mm Carbon Products Privatel.imited 6.71 6.26
Paragon Overscas Limited 413 379
Response Renewable Energy Limited - 2,51
Swasti Housing Projects (P) Limited - 447
Watercralts Bottlers LLP 0.09 1.79
Western Apartments Private Limited 1.26 1.18
Western Conglomerate Limited 24.69 23.12
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited 4.19 '
Weslern Logistics Private Limited 16.37 18.33
Western Skyvilla Private Limited 731 6.85
Weslern Warchousing Private Limited 19.09 26.27

*The above loans have been given for business purpose and details of investments made are given in note 7 and 8

Note 16.4
T'here are no outstanding loans/advances in nature of loan from promoters, key management personnel or other officers of the Company

Note 16.5
I'he Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the

Companices (Restriction on number of Lavers) Rules, 2017




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 17: Equity share capital
As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Authorised share capital
100,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each* 500.00 450.00
(As at March 31, 2022: 45,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
15,000,000 Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each# 150.00 150.00
(As at March 31, 2022: 15,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
Total authorised share capital 650.00 600.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
78,699,400 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up* 393.50 393.50
(As at March 31, 2022: 39,349,700 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up)
Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 393.50 393.50

# Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares has been issued, subscribed and fully paid up, however are classified as financial liabilities. Refer Note 19 for

additional details.

* There was a sub-division of the existing 3,93,49,700 equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each fully paid up into 7,86,99,400 equity shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid
up, which was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on March 31, 2023. The record date for the said sub-division

was March 30, 2023

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

For thc year endcd T
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,93,49.700 393.50 3,93,49,700 393.50
Increase on account of sub-division of shares 3,93.49,700 - - -
Balance at the end of the year 7,86,99,400 393.50 3,93.49,700 393.50
(b) Details of equity shares held by the promoters at the year end
Name As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares* %age holding No. of shares* %age holding
Rajendra Sethia # 7,86,90,200 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99%
Kanishka Sethia 4,920 0.00% 2,460 0.00%
7,86,95,120 99.99% 3,93,47,560 99.,99%

* There are no changes in the promoters shareholding as at the end of any of the vears presented.

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares issued by the Company
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after the payment of all the preferential amounts.

(d) Details of equity shares held by equity shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares Y%age holding No. of shares Yeage holding
Rajendra Sethia # 7.86,90,200 99.99% 3.93.45.100 99.99%
7.86,90,200 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99%

# Subsequent to March 31, 2023, Rajendra Sethia Family Trust (‘'Trust’ or 'Family Trust') has been created and Rajendra Sethia has transferred 1,000 shares to the said

Trust on May 23, 2023.

Note 18: Other equity

As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Retained earnings 2,650.20 2,033.07
Remeasurement of employee defined benefits (8.59) (1.56)
FVOCI -Equity investments (0.32) (0.32)
Capital redemption reserve 150.00 150.00
[ Balance at the end of the year 2,791.29 2,181.19
Retained Earnings
A QO As at As at
i . March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year R > N ;){\ 2,033.07 1,571.86
Profit for the year e -‘(( e I'A g U 715.50 611.21
Dividend Paid -+ e Ry (98.37)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve o IO (150.00)
Balance at the end of the year N e ral = 2.650.20 2,033.07
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(Amounts in Rs, Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Remeasurement of employee defined benefits

0, As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Balance at the beginning of the vear (1.56) 037
Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax (7.03) (1.93)
= Balance at the end of the year (8.59) (1.56)
FYOCI - Equity Instruments
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.32) (032)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Balance at the end of the year (0.32) (0.32)

(a) Retained carnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has carned till date. less any transfers 1o reserves, dividends or other distributions paid to sharcholders. Retained
earnings is a free reserve available 1o the Company.

(b) Remeasurement of employee defined benefits
Remeasurement of employee defined benefits represents re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(¢) FYOCT equity investments

The Company has clected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income These changes are
accumulated within the FVOCT equity investments reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve o retained earnings when the relevant
equity securities are derecognised,

(d) Capital redemption reserve

I'he Companies Act. 2013 (the “Companies Act™) requires that where a Company redeem its preference shares out of free reserves or securitics premium, a sum equal
to the nominal value of the preference shares so redeemed shall be translerred 1o a capital redemption reserve and details of such transter shall be disclosed in the
balance sheet. The capital redemption reserve may be applied by the Company. in paying up unissued shares of the Company 10 be issued to sharcholders of the

Company as fully paid bonus shares

g ST DEPURE o0
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Note 19: Borrowings

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
A. Non-current
(a) Secured borrowings
Term loans from banks
(1) Vehicles Finance 308.59 71.87
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (112.55) (57.12)
196.04 14.75
(i1) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines (GECL) 155.80 199.54
Less: Current maturitics of long-term borrowings (46.90) (43.74)
108.90 155.80
(b) Unsecured borrowings
1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares (Refer Note (b) below) = )
Total Long-term borrowings 304.94 170.55
B. Current
(a) Secured borrowings
(i) Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Cash Credits 1,538.00 1,156.97
- Overdrafi 16.71 15.80
(ii) Current maturities of long-term borrowings
- Vehicles Finance 112.55 57.12
- Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines 46.90 43.74
(b} Unsecured borrowings
- From Others 221 6.76
Total Short-term borrowings 1,716.37 1,280.39
Total borrowings 2,021.31 1,450.94
() Term loans from banks
(i) Vehicle Finance
The above loans are secured by hypothecation of Vehicle/Equipment purchased out of the above Loan.
Amount Amount
Total Ha of Earliest Start Date Maturity Rate of Interest outstanding outstanding
Instalments As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022 |
HDFC Bank 35-37 February 20, 2021 [P0t T2 6760 - 826% 205.61 39.94
Kotak Mahindra 3 une 10,2022 [ e IR ET | 1% - masw 10298 31.93
308.59 71.87

(ii) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines
(GECL)

The above loans are 100% guaranteed by National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company along with secured by hypothecation by way of Second Charge on book debts and collaterally secured
by movable properties of the Company and immovable properties owned by Shri Rajendra Sethia and personally guaranteed by Kanishka Sethia and Rajendra Sethia, Director of the

Company.
Amount Amount
Totsl Ne. of Earliest Start Date Maturity Rate of Interest Smtunatay G-~
Instalments As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
48 equal monthly
HDFC Bank instalments after February 7, 2021 January 7, 2026 8.25% 48.94 63.66
moratorium of 1 year
36 equal monthly
Kotak Mahindra instalments after January 7, 2021 December 7, 2024 8.25% 26.93 40.72
moratorium of | year
49-47 equal monthly
Indian Bank m::::;:‘::‘“::?fz 5| March 15,2021 | January 15,2028 8.30% 79.93 95.16
months
155.80 199.54

(b) 1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares

% Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (Preference shares) were issued on March 27, 2014 for a term of 10 years. The coupon on the preference of 1% was below market rate
and accordingly on the transition to Ind AS, it was fair valued and the difference between the carrying amount and fair value (as on transition date i.e. April 1, 2020) of Rs. 43.04 Millions was
recognised in other equity. The Company has redeemed the preference shares on March 10, 2022, earlier than its maturity date. The difference between the carrying amount and redemption
amount of Rs. 23.49 Millions has been recognised as "Loss on early redemption of preference shares” under other expenses

(¢) Unsecured borrowings from others

Unsecured borrowings from others represents borrowings from body corporates, which is repayable on demand.

(d) Quarterly return or statements filed with banks

The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the banks in lieu of the sanctioned working capital facilities. There was no material difference between the amount of trade
receivables (billed) reported to the banks, except for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, whereby the reported amount of trade receivables (billed) were higher by Rs
31.75 millions and lower by Rs. 264.80 millions respectively. Such differences were due to adjustments pursuant to reconciliation with the customers.

(e) wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any government authority.

() Registration of charges or satisfaction with Register of Company (ROC)

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
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Note 20: Other financial liabilities

(Amounts in Rs, Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Asat
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

. Current
ta) Payable 10 employees 36.44 419
(b) Other pavables 42,13 2082
Total Other financial liabilities 78.57 61.01
Other current payable includes payable 1o capital creditors of Rs. 1.20 Millions (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 23.63 Millions)
Note 21: Provisions
As at As at

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Non-current
Provisions for employee benefits

Total Shori-term provisions

Employee defined benefit obligation - Gratuty [Refer note 33] 39.50 22.04
Total Long-term provisions 39.50 22.04
Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Emplovee defined benefit oblipation - Gratuity [Refer note 33] 208
2.08

Note 22: Trade payables

Asat
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note (b) below) 37.38 -
() Total owtstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 502.91 649 50
T'otal Trade payables 540.29 649,50
Ageing of trade payables
As at March 31, 2023
i More than 3 -
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years b tHan Total
years
MSME - 37.38 s = = 3738
Others - 502.91 - - - 302.491
Disputed dues-MSMI - - 4 - -
Disputed Dues- Others - - - - -
Total 540.29 - - - 540.29
As at March 31, 2022
. Muore o
Not due Less than 1 yvear 1-2 years 2-3 years argithafd Fotal
years
MSME . 2 = i
Others 64950 . 4 6149 50
Disputed dues-MSME - - - -
Disputed Dues- Others - . "
Tortal 649.50 - - 649.50
{a) The ageing has been determined from the date of the invoige
(b) Refer Note 33 for addinonal information required under the NSME Act. 2006
(¢) There are no disputed dues of any creditors as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively
Note 23: Other current liabilities
As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(a) Statutory Dues

40.15

47.12

‘Total Other current liabilities

40.15

47.12
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»
Note 24: Revenue from operations

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2022

Revenue from contract with customers
(a) Revenue from Freight, Handling. Agency & Other Charges

16,330.63

14,708.75

Total revenue from operations

16,330.63

14,708.75

Note:

(2) The Company recognises revenue when control over the services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

(b) The Company does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
pany Yy SIR | 2

(¢) The Company recognises revenue from rendering of services overtime, as and when such services are performed.

Note 25: Other income

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(a) Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost

(1) Interest income from loans to body corporate and others 13.93 1737

(i1) Interest mcome from deposits with banks 17.55 17.56

(b) Insurance claims 9.07 1.12
(¢) Other muscellancous income 7.10 9.65
I'otal other income 47.65 49.10

Note 26: Operational expenses

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(a) Freight, Handling & Other Charges

14,213.42

12,804.09

Total Operational expenses

14,213.42

12,804.09

Note 27: Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Total employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries. Wages and Bonus 353 86 31399
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 23.37 14.71
(c) Gratuity (Refer note 33) 9.02 5493
(d) Staff welfare expenses 31.27 3614

417.52 370.37

Note 28: Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(a) Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Total finance costs

- Interest expenses on short-term borrowings from banks and financial institutions 11212 80.85
- Interest expenses on term loans banks 26.96 34.07
- Interest expenses on Preference shares classified as lhabilities - 11.43
- Interest expenses on loans [rom body corporate 0.51 0.59
- Interest on other long-term financial liabilities = 2
(b) Interest on lease obligations 5.01 4.73
(c) Other borrowing costs 6.51 7:.53
151.11 139.20
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" Note 29: Depreciation and amortisation expense

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and cquipments 129.20 9x 15
(b) Amortisation of intangible assets 0.53 0.53
{¢) Depreciation of right of use asscts 22.90 16.32
lotal depreciation and amortisation expense 152.65 116.00

Note 30: Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Donation and subscriptions 592 4.03
(b) Corporate social responsibility expenscs [Refer Note 40) 10.00 11.58
(c) Loss on carly redemption of preference share - 2349
(d) Rent expenses 30.90 26.60
(e) Repairs and maintenance
- Vehicle and equipment 269.77 291.98

(£ Maintenance and upkeep charges 6.81 8.00
(g) Electricity expenses 5.01 379
(h) Bank charges 3.91 298
(1) Travelling and conveyance expenses 46.77 35.60
(1) Insurance charges 19.22 H 34
(k) Printing & stationery expenses 5.66 4.95
(1) Telephone expenses 4.00 414
(m) Auditors' Remuneration [Refer 30.1 below| 1.20 1.20
(n) Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment 0.02 -
(0) Allowance for doubtful debts 1.42 107
(p) Other general expenses 70.88 68.80
(q) Foreign Exchange fluctuation Loss 1.56

Total other expenses 483.05 494.60

30.1 Auditors' Remuneration

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Audit fees - statutory audit 1.05 1.05
Audit fees - tax audit 0.15 0.15
Total auditors remuneration 1.20 1.20

Aoy
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: . (Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless s Prwise
X Note 31: Earnings per share ss stated otherwise)

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit afier tax for the vear (in Rs. Millions) 715.50 61121
Profit available 1o the equity shareholders (in Rs. Millions) (a) 71550 611.21
Number of equily shares al the beginning of the year 7.86.99.400 7.86,99 400
Number of equity shares at the end of the vear 7.86.99 400 7.86.99.400
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear (b) 7.86.99.400 7.86.99 400
Nominal value of cach equity share (in Rs.) 5.00 500
Basic earnings per equily share (a/b) (in Rs.) 9.09 177
Diluted earmings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.) 9.09 7.77

Lzarning per share calculated restated as applicable for year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 afier considering the number of equity shares post sub-division,

keeping with the applicable Ind AS

Note 32: Contingencies and Committments
Asal Asat
(1) Contingent liabilities March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Claims not acknowledged as debis
- Demand of Indian Railway# : 531 531
- Income - lax 54 18.00 -

#A demand nouce dated February 9, 2022 (“Demand Notice™) was issued by the commercial supervisor, North Eastern Frontier Railways, Azara, Assam (“Respondents™) to
the Company, demanding penalty of 25 31 million in relation to alleged mis-declaration of consignment by the Company, and detaining the consignment against the demand
so raised The Company filed a writ petition (“Writ Petition™) before the Gauhati High Court ("High Coun™) praving that the Demand Notice be declared illegal, without any
authority of law and hable 1o be set aside The High Court, by an order dated February 23, 2022 held that pendency of the Writ Petition will not act as a bar on the
Respondents from verifying and re-assessing the charges in relation 1o alleged mis-declaration of consignment. The Company appealed aganst this order before the High
Court. The High Court by its order dated March 16, 2022 (~Order™) directed the release of the consignment upon furnishing ol a bank guarantee of 3531 million by the
Company. Pursuant to this Order, the Company has furmished a bank guarantee and secured release of the consignment. The Wit Petition 1s currently pending

## The company has been advised by its lawyers that income tax demand are not tenable, and hence this 1s being contested. No provision in the books has been considered
necessary for the above matters. The future cash flows on account of the above cannot be determined unless the judgements/decisions are received from the ultimate judicial

forum. No reimbursements 1s expected o anse 1o the company in respeet of above cases,

Note 33: Disclosures relating to micro and small enterprises
Asat As at
Sr. No. Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 The Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier al the end of the accounting
year :
37.38

- Principal amount

- Interest due thereon
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the

=

amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day dsaring the year.

- Principal amount - -

- Interest due thereon - -
3 The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this MSMED Act,

2006 ]

- Principal amount - :

- Interest due thereon - -
4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting vear - -
5 ‘The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in the succeeding years, until such date when - -

the interest due on above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such partics have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has

been relied upon by the auditors
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Note 34: Employce Benefits
Employees Defined Contribution Plans - Provident Fund

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

The Company provides Provident Fund facility to eligible employees. The fund is managed by Commissioner of the Providend Fund. The contributions are expensed as
they are incurred in line with the treatment of wages and salaries. The liability of the Company 1s limited 1o the contribution deducted from the salary of the employee and

31.2022: Rs 14.71 Millions) as expenses under defined contribution plans

Employee Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity [Unfunded|

the Company's share. The Company has recognized. in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, an amount of Rs. 19.98 Millions (for the year ended March

I'he Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are ehigible
for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 13 days salary
multiphied by the number of years of service completed. subject to the maximum amount of Rs. 2 Million. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan. The Company docs not

fully fund the liability and make the payments as and when they become due from its own funds

Amounts recognised in the financial statements

The amounts recognised m the financial statements and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets is as under

Fair value of
Dnﬁ".‘.d l?cm-ﬁl plan assets Net amount
obligations (Unfunded)

Balance as at April I, 2021 16,94 - 16.94
Current service cost 436 - 4.36
Interest expense/ income 113 - L7

Fotal amount recognised in profit or loss 5.53 - 5.53

Remeasurement
Return on plan assets. excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) C: -

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - = =
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 0.05 . 005
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience 253 - 2.53

Total amount recognised in OCI 2.58 - 2.58
Employer contributions/ premium paid - 034 034
Benefit payments 034 034 0.68

Balance as at March 31, 2022 24.72 - 24.72
Current service cost 7.26 726
Interest expense/ income 1.75 - 1.75

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 9.01 - 9.01

Remeasurement
Return on plan assets. excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - -

Actuanal (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (0.04) (0.04)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience 9.43 . 943

Total amount recognised in OCI 239 - 9.39
Employer contributions/ premium paid - 0.37 0.37
Benefit payments 0.37 0.37 073

Balance as at March 31, 2023 4LT5 - 4178

Classification of the obligation into current and non current

As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Current 3.25 208
Non-Current 3950 2204
42,75 PE N
(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions
Asat As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows

Rate of discounting 7 30% 7.10%

Rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%

Indian Assured Indian Assured

Mortality rate during employment Lives Mortality | Lives Mortality

(2012-14) ultimate|(2012-14) ultimate
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(1i) Sensitivity analysis

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

The sensitivity ol the defined beneTit obligation to
changes in the weighted principal assumptions is
Discount rate (+/- 1%)

Salary growth rate (+/- 1%)

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

(4.60)

3.60

(4.39)
3.85

2.00
(2.43)

(2.34)
2.1

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting period. while

holding all other assumptions constant

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions

would occur in 1solation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

Furthermore. in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period. which is the same method as applied in caleulating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet

"There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years

(iv) Major categories of plans asset
I'he scheme is untunded

(v) Risk exposure

Through its defined benetit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Pay-as-you-go Risk:

For unfunded schemes financial planning could be difficult as the benefits payable will dircctly affect the revenue and this could be widely fluctuating [rom year to year
Morcover there may be an opportunity cost of better investment returns affecting adversely the cost of the scheme.

Discount rate risk:

The Company 15 exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit thereby

increasing the value of the lability
Ligquidity Risk:

This risk arises from the short term asset and lability cash-flow mismatch thereby causing the company being unable to pay the benelits as they fall due in the short term
Such a situation could be the result of holding large illiquid assets disregarding the results of cash-flow projections and cash outgo inflow mismatch. (Or it could be due to

insufficient assets/cash.)
Future Salary Increase Risk:

The Scheme cost 1s very sensitive to the assumed future salary escalation rates for all final salary defined benefit Schemes. 11 actual Tuture salary escalations are higher

than that assumed in the valuation actual Scheme cost and hence the value of the liability will be hugher than that estimated

Demographic Risk:

In the valuation of the liability certain demographic (mortality and attrition rates) assumptions are made. The Company 1s exposed to this nisk 1o the extent of actual
experience eventually being worse compared to the assumptions thereby causing an increase in the scheme cost

Regulatory Risk:

Gratuity Benefit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended up-to-date). There is a risk of change in the regulations requiring
higher gratuity payments (e g. raising the present ceiling of Rs. 2 Millions, raising accrual rate from 15/26 etc.)

(vi) Other disclosures

a. Expected contribution for next year (12 months), 1.e. 2023-24: Rs. 12 89 Millions

b Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4.77 years (As at March 31, 2022: 5.21 years)

¢ Estimated Cash Flows (Undiscounted) in subsequent years

610 10 years

As al As al
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Within | year 3.25 268
210 5 years 4.89 831
589 932

—
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- (Amounts in Rs, Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 35: Financial Instruments and fair value measurements
The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company at the end of the year and the transition date is as under:

LR, As at As at
Clasnifisntion March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
of the assets / - = = =
) . liabilities Carrying Fair value Chrrying Fair value
FFinancial assets amount amount
Investments in equity instruments FVOCI 747 7.47 7.47 7.47
l.oans Amortised Cost 186.94 186.94 170.34 170.34
Trade receivables Amortised Cost 3.896.56 3.896.56 3.113.89 3.113.89
Cash and cash cquivalents Amortised Cosl 13.45 13.45 24.74 24.74
Other balances with bank Amortised Cost 182.08 182.08 107.25 107.25
Other Financial asscts (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 186.53 186.53 312.75 31275
Total TI7303 TIT303 T35 TT361T
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings (including current Amortised Cost 464.39 461.15 27141 268.09
Short-term borrowings Amortised Cost 1.556.92 1.556.92 1,179.53 1.179.53
Lcase habilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 48 80 48.80 4].12 41,12
I'rade payables Amortised Cost 540.29 540.29 649.50 649.50
Other financial labilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 78.57 78.57 61.01 61.01
Total 768897 TG85.73 TI0Z37 T 19975

(i) The carrying amounts of current financial assets and liabilitics carried al amortised cost closely approximate to their fair values as the impact ol
discounting on such financial assets or liabilitics is not significant considering the instruments matures in a very short lime

(n) Unsecured loans from related parties are repayble on demand and accordingly represents its fair value.

(1) Long-term security deposits are repayable on closure of contracts i.c., repayable on demand and accordingly carrying amount reflect its lair values. The

- same can be categorised as Level 3 fair value

(1v)  Long-term borrowings carries both fixed and vanable rate ol interest. For variable interest rate borrowings. carrying amounts are considered to
represent fair value of such borrowings. For fixed rate borrowings fair values have been determined using discounted cash flow approach using the
current interest rates. The fair values of the borrowings can be categorised as Level 2 fair values.

(v) Fair value of investment in equity instruments is determined using the cost method. The fair value of the investments is classified level 3. There is no
significant operations in the investee entity and accordingly there are no significant changes in the fair value

Fair value hierarchy

I'his section explains the judgements and estimates made i determinimg the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at
fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the linancial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining lair value. the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard

(a) Level I - Quoted prices in an active market:
This level of hierarchy includes financial asscts that are measured by reference 1o quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

(b)  Level 2 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with observable inputs:
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
obscrvable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific- estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

(¢) Level 3 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with significant-unobservable inputs:
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and financial habilities méasured using inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part; using & valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by
prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data

There are no transfers between levels 1. 2 and 3 during the vear.
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Nute 36: Capital management

Risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are Lo:

(a) safeguard their ability 1o continue as a going concern. so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakcholders. and
(b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company which comprises
issued share capital and accumulated reserves disclosed in the statement of changes in equity and debts appearing as part of the borrowings.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-1o-
day needs. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity. long term borrowings and short term borrowings.

Note 37: Reconciliation of debts
This section sets out an analysis of debt and the movements therein

As at Asat
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Long-term borrowings including current maturitics 464.39 271.41
1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares - Z
Short-term borrowings 1.556 92 1.179.53
l.ease obligations (current and non-current) 48.80 a1l
ZU70.T1 TAYLUG6
Long-term 1% Redeemable S
bnrrbwings Non Cumulative Short-term Lease.obligations
including current Preference borrowings iurpentsnd uga
o = current)
maturities Shares
Net debt as at April 1, 2021 oy 337.97 116.58 899.45 55.35
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken during the year = & 3 0.87
Proceeds from borrowings during the year 35.50 - 280.08 -
Interest expense for the year 34.07 11.43 81.44 473
Interest paid during the year (34.07) (1.50) (81.44) (4.73)
Loss on carly redemption of preference share 2349
Repayment of borrowings / lease hability during the year (102.06) (150.00) » (15.10)
Net debt as at March 31,2022 LA 3 LI79.53 4112
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken during the year = = - 3011
Proceeds from borrowings during the year 33341 = 377.39
Interest expense for the year 2696 z 112.63 5.01
Interest paid during the year (26.96) = (112.63) (3.01)
l.oss on early redemption of preference share - = - -
Repayment of borrowings / lease liability during the year ' (140.43) ) (22.43)
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 16339 = T.556.97 T80

Note 38 Financial rish management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in interest rates, liquidity and credit nisk. which may adversely impact the fair
value of its financial instruments. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, the Company has risk management
policies as described below:

Credit risk
Credit risk 1s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed Lo credit risk [rom its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) including deposits with banks and financial institutions. foreign

(A)

exchange transactions. other [inancial instruments carried at amortised cost

Financial nstruments that are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loans receivables. cash and cash
cquivalents and other bank balances held by the Company. Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of the Company result in
material concentration of credit risk

I'he carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 4.066.56 Millions and Rs. 3.728 97
Millions as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively. bemng the total carrying value of trade receivables. balances with bank. bank deposits. loans

and other financial assets.
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(B)

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through established policy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally carrying 30 to 60 days credit terms. The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue
customer receivables at various levels within the organisation 1o ensure proper attention and focus for realisation. The Company periodically assesses the
financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and ageing of accounts receivable.

IFinancial asscts are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk.

The requirement for impairment is analysed at cach reporting date. The (‘mﬁpan_\" receivables turnover i1s quick and historically, there was no significant
defaults on account of those customer in the past. Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal)
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal Lo thelife time expected credit losses. The Company has used a practical expedient by
computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on-a‘provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The outstanding receivables are regularly monitored to minimise the credit risk.

The Company cvaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assels as low, as its customers are located in several
Jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets. Of the trade receivables balance. Rs. 2.250.64 Millions in aggregale (Rs. 1.618 54
Millions as at March 31, 2022) is due from the Company's customers individually representing more than 5% of the total trade receivables balance and
accounted for approximately 57.09% (51.98% as at March 31, 2022 ) of all the receivables outstanding.

Other financial instruments and bank deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's finance department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Counterparty credit limits
arce reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis. and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Board
of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure 1o make
payments

Balances with banks and deposits are placed only with highly rated banks/linancial institution.

Liquidity risk !

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. i '

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is
generally performed in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company's financial habilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact
of discounting 1s not significant i

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
As at March 31,2023 Less than | More than 3 s
1-2 years 2-3 years l'otal

year years
Borrowings 1,747.55 183.09 123.54 2542 2.079.60
|.case liabilities 24.06 22.59 5.69 2.12 54.46
‘I'rade payables 540.29 = = " $40.29
Other financial liabilities 78.57 5 2 : 78.57
Total financial liabilities Z.J‘J(I.:I'f 205,08 129.23 27.54 2,19292
As at March 31,2022 gl 1-2 yeares 2-3 years i Total

year }.: vears
Borrowings 1,298.01 73.36 60.61 59.68 1.491.66
Lease liabilities 18.46 12.38 12.30 4.50 47.64
‘Trade payables 649.50 - - - 649.50
Other financial liabilitics 61.01 = 2 = 61.01
Total financial liabilitics 202698 8573 72971 [(ERE 2,239.81
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(T) Market Risk
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

Company’s exposure o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates
ire carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk. since neither the carrying amount nor

I'he Company’'s fixed rate borrowings
the future cash Nows will uctuate because of a change in market mterest rates

Interest rate risk exposure on financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Fixed rate borrowings 464.39 271.41
Variable rate borrowings 1,556.92 1,179.53
Total borrowings 202131 TI50.99

Sensitivity to changes in interest rates
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:

FOT [T ycar enaca
March 31, 2023

TOr Ihe year enaca
March 31, 2022

Impact on
profit before tax

Impact on equity

Impact on
profit before tax

Impact on equity

Interest expense rates ~ increase by
50 basis points (50 bps)*
Interest expense rates - decrease by
50 basis points (50 bps)*

7.78

(7.78)

5.90

(5.90)

(441

* Holding all other variables constant

Foreign currency risk

I'he Company did not have any exposure to the foreign currency as at the year ends

VSt
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Note 39: Related Party Disclosures

(a) List of related parties and relationship

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Name

Relationship

Mr. Rajendra Sethia, Managing Dircctor

Mr. Kanishka Sethia, Whole-time Director

Mrs. Sushila Sethia. Whole-time Director

Mr. Sunil Munshi. Independent Director

Mr. Bipradas Bhattacharjee, Independent Director
Mrs. Rajni Mishra, Independent Director

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Mantri, CFO

Mrs. Sapna Kochar. CS

Western Skyvilla Private Limited#
Success Suppliers Private Limited

S M P Properties Private Limited

1. M Carriers Private Limited

Rajendra Sethia Family Trust
Aspective Commodeal Private Limited
Wescon Limited

Wescon

Shimmer

Western Sparefoot Private Limited
Western Dry Ports Private Limited
Western Group Limited

Western Pest Solution Private Limited
Western Clearing and Forwarding Agency
Singular Infrastructure Limited
Watercraft Bottlers LLP

AJKR Infrastructure Limited

Kunal Resources Private Limited
Western Logistics Private Limited
Western Ware Housing Private Limited
Western Apartments Private Limited#
Western Conglomerate Limited
Western Herbicides Private Limited
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Gipsy Management Private Limited

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel (w.e.f August 31, 2022)

Key Management Personnel (w.e.f June 24, 2022)
Key Management Personnel

Subsidiary Company
Associate Company
Associale Company
Associate Company

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control (w.c.f May 4, 2023)

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

# Subsequent 1o March 31, 2023, the Company, pursuant o a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on May 8.
2023, has sold 1.010.000 shares that it held in Western Skyvilla Private Limited to one of its Promoters, Rajendra Sethia. Consequent to the sale of shares,
Western Skyvilla Private Limited, has ceased to be subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. May 9, 2023. Western Skyvilla Private Limited. will continue to be
related party being an enterprise where key management personnel has significant influence or control.

(b) Transactions with the related parties

For the year ended | For the year ended
Name of the related parties Nature of transactions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Western Logistics Private Limited Loans given - 0.09
Gipsy Management Private Linnted Loans given 11.21 -
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited Loans given 4.05 -
Western Skyvilla Private Limited Loans given = 06.62
Watereraft Bottlers LLP Loans given - 1.70
Kunal Resources Private Limited Loans repaid - 1.51
Western Ware Housing Private Limited Loans repaid 8.91 107.83
Western Krafi & Paper Private Limited Loans repaid - 3147
Western Herbicides Private Limited Loans repaid - 6.04
Gipsy Management Private Limited Loans repaid - 3.39
.M Carriers Private Limited Loans repaid - 11.00
Western Logistics Private Limited Loans repaid 2.98 -
Watercraft Bottlers LLP Loans repaid 1.79 -
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Gipsy Management Private Limited
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Western Apartments Private Limited
Watercraft Bottlers LLP

Western Logistics Private Limited
Western Skyvilla Private Limited
Western Ware Housing Private Limited
Western Conglomerate Limited

F.M Carriers Private Limited

Rajendra Sethia
Western Ware Housing Private Limited
Sushila Sethia

Rajendra Scthia
Kanishka Sethia
Sushila Scthia

Rajendra Sethia
Kanishka Sethia
Sushila Sethia

Sapna Kochar

Dinesh Kumar Mantri

Bipradas Bhattacharjec, Director

Interest on loan
Interest on loan
Interest on loan
Interest on loan
Interest on loan
Interest on loan
Interest on loan
Interest on loan

Investment in Shares

Rent Paid
Rent Paid
Rent Paid

Dividend paid
Dividend paid*
Dividend paid*

Directors Remuneration
Directors Remuneration
Directors Remuneration
Salary
Salary

Sitting fecs

4.06
0.16
0.09
0.19
I3
0.51
1.92
1.73

14.38
11.39
0.18

98.36
0.00
0.00

12.00
6.00
6.00
0.49
3.29

0.35

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

5.90
0.07
0.10
|.44
0.25
8.76

11.00

9.42
11.39
0.18

6.40
3.60
2.80
0.44

0.30

*Below rounding off figure

Additional disclosures pertaining to compensation of key managerial personnel

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(a) Short-term employee benefits 27.78 13.24
(b) Post employment benefit # - -
(c) Sitting fees (.35 0.30

28.13 13.54

(e) Y

# below rounding ofl number

‘ear end balances with related parties

Name of the related parties

Nature of balances

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Western Warchousing Private Limited
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Western Conglomerate Limited

Gipsy Management Private Limited
Western Logistics Private Limited
Western Skyvilla Private Limited
Western Apartments Private Limited

Watercrafi Bottlers LLP

Loans reccivable
lLoans receivable
L.oans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
loans receivable
l.oans receivable
l.oans receivable

19.09
4.19
24.69
66.63
16.37
7.31
1.26
0.09

26.27
23.13
§Lad
18.33
6.85
1.18
1.79

Note 40: Segment Disclosures
The Company is engaged in providing logistics and allicd services to various customers in India and is a major logistics service provider. The performance
of the Company is assessed and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM?) as a single operating segment and accordingly logistics and

allied services is the only operating segment.

The Company is domiciled in India, and also provides scrvices in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers split by location of the

Revenue from external customers

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

India 16,330.63 14,708.75
Qutside India = =
Total 16,330.63 14,708.75

There are no non-current assets located in foreign countries.

Revenues of approximately Rs 4.915.44 Millions (for the year ended March 31, 2022 - Rs. 6,744.34 Millions) are derived from 2 customers individually

having revenues of 10% or more
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= (Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 41: Corporate social responsibility

For the year ended Ior the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
= |Amount required Lo be spent during the year 13.00 9.64
Amount approved by the board to be spent during the period 13.00 9.64
Amount spent during the period on:
(1) Construction/acquisition of any asset n =
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 10.00 11.58
Amount of expenditure incurred 10.00 11.58
Shortfall at the end of the period 12.61 9.61
Total of previous year's shortfall : -
Cumulative Shortfall 12.61 9.6l
Nature of CSR activities
Activities specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act. 2013 10.00 11.58
Details of related party transactions = =

The Company is in the process of identifying the projects for spending the amount shown as cumulative shortfall at the year end.
Note 42: Undisclosed Income

The Company did not have any undisclosed income in any of the years which was surrendered / disclosed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Note 43: Details of benami property

The Company do not have any benami property held in its name and there have been no proccedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thercunder.,

Note 44: Analytical Ratios

As at As at
Ratios March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 % Change Remarks
Current Ratio 1.93 1.81 6.67%
Debt-equity ratio 0.63 0.56 13.34%
et N o . . Due to high carnings
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.20 211 51.44% 5 5 i
g available for debt service
Return on investment 0.06 0.06 -4.68%
Return on Equity Ratio 0.25 0.27 -7.98%
Inventory turnover ratio N/A N/A N/A
‘Trade Receivables turnover ratio 4.66 5.22 -10.75%
o y Due to decrease in trade
I'rade payables turnover ratio 23.89 17.92 33.33% :
2 payables
Net capital turnover ratio 7.31 8.82 -17.08%
Net profit ratio 0.04 0.04 9.53%
Return on Capital employed 0.30 0.34 -11.09%
Note |
Ratios Numerator Denominator
Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilitics
Debt-equity ratio Total debt Total equity
Earnings available for debt service=Net Profit S
Dkt Seivice C Rati fiort = N g | - \:. sl Debt Service=Interest and lease payments -
bt Service rage Rz after taxes + Non-cash operating ey
cbt Service Coverage Ratio ¢ cs cash ope g Principal Repayments
expenses+Interest expense
Return on investment Income generated from invested Tunds Average invested funds
Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits afier taxes — Preference Dividend Average total equity = (Opening+Closing)/2
Inventory turnover ratio Not applicable Not applicable
Tride Receivabl : R f S /_:’-ﬂ—_ e e.of trade receivables =
ade Receivables turnover ri evenue from operations R L GALE | PAY
rade Receivables turnover ratio ¢ p 5 // A YipeririaNRlosing)2
s SN )
Trade payables turnover ratio Operational expenses .._.é y |Average nflr'z\ldc payables = (Opening+Closing)/2
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations * orking capifal = Current assets - current liabilitics
>~y / .
Net profit ratio Net Profits aller taxes Q}a‘;\-_v Revenue {tom operations
Jlered pgou iz
. Bt Dol e o == t.*aﬁﬁrcmpln_\cd = Networth + Long term
. > al e ‘o LAr] o ‘Sfore rest @ axes . - . T
Retum on Capital employed HITIAERRRIOTEC RIS BUE ARG borrowing + Lease liability + Delerred tax liability
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Note 45: Struck off companies

The Company does not have any transactions with struck ofl’ companies.
Note 46: Subsequent events
(a) Others

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 8, 2023, the Company sold 1,010.000 shares that it held in
Western Skyvilla Private Limited (The companies subsidiary) to one of the Promoters, Rajendra Sethia. As of the date, the Company does not hold
any share in Western Skyvilla Private Limited and with effect from May 9. 2023, Western Skyvilla Private Limited ceased to be a subsidiary.

(b) On Junc 9. 2023, the company filed Draft Red Herring Propepectus jn connection with the Initial Public Offer with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India :

(¢) There were no significant adjusting events afler end of the reporting period which require any adjustment or disclosure in the financial
statements subsequent to the reporting period. :

Note 47: Crypto Currency or Virtual Curreney
I'he group has not traded or invested in Cropto currency or Virtual Curreney durign the financial year,

Note 48: Reclassification
Previous year [igures have been regrouped/ rearranged/ reclassified wherever necessary. Further, there are no material regroupings/ reclassifications
during the year.

Note 49: Impact of the Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Sacial Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employce benefits during employment and post-employment received Indian Parliament approval
and Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India and subsequently on November 13. 2020 draft rules were
published and invited for stakeholders™ suggestions. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will
assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Note 50: Approval of financial statements
The standalone financial statements has been approved for issue by the resolution of the board of directors dated August 28, 2023

IFor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JAT PANDYA & ASSOCIATES ¢
Chartered Accountants M é'% S
Firm Registration Number : 3160711 Rajendra Sethia anishka Sethia

Mangging Dircctor Whole time Director

DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232
v

J.K. PANDY A 3[““&”{ = ‘
Partner Dinesh Kumar Mantri Sapna Kochar
Membership Number: 52678 Chief Financial Officer Company Sccretary

Kolkata., August 28. 2023 Membership Number: A56298
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Western Carriers (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Western
Carriers (India) Limited (“the Parent Company”), which includes its subsidiary (the
Parent Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) and its
associates comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss ( including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”)

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate
financial statements of the subsidiary and associates referred to in the “Other
Matters” section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group and its associates as at March 31, 2023, their consolidated profit (including
other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and its associates in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the
other auditors referred to in paragraph 11 of the “Other Matters” section below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

4. The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and-eur aug g report
thereon. :
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of
other auditors as furnished to us (refer “Other Matters”), we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

5. The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of the
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate companies are responsible for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for the safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its associate
companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

6. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and its associate companies are responsible
for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associate companies to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its
associate companies are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group and its associate companies.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Parent Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

c¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate
companies to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and its associate companies to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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10.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group and its
associate companies to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and
such other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

11.

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 102.76 million as at March 31, 2023, total
revenues of Rs. 0. 58 million and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.0.31 million for
the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit of
Rs.0.14 million for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of three associates whose financial
statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary
and associate companies, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143
of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and associate companies
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above
matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

12.

With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARQ”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
explanatmns glven to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the
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to which reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management
of the Parent Company, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies
included in the consolidated financial statements.

13.As

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the

consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiary and the associate companies, as referred to in the “Other Matters”
paragraph above, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

d)

We / have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as rcquired by law relating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including the Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of :iiccount maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Parent Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Parent and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary
and associate companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies and its associate companies incorporated in India, is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect  to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to the consolidated financial statements and the opcrating effectiveness of such
controls refer to our separate Report in “Annexurc A”, which is based on the
auditor’s report of the Parent Company, subsidiary company and associate
companies incorporated in India.

In our opinion, managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has
been paid/ provided by the Parent Company in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

As reported by the auditors of the subsidiary and associate companies (referred
to in the “Other Matters Paragraph”) the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the said subsidiary and associate
companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and accordlng to the
explanations given to us:
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II.

III.

IV.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations as on March 31, 2023 on the consolidated financial position of the
Group and its associate companies — Refer Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements;

The Group and its associate companies did not have any material foreseeable
losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent Company, its subsidiary and
associate companies incorporated in India.

a) The respective managements of the Parent Company, its subsidiary and
associate companies which are companies incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us
and to the other auditors of such subsidiary and associate companies that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the parent Company or the subsidiary or
any other associated companies to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the undcrstanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Parent Company, its subsidiary or any associated
companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Parent Company, its subsidiary and
associate companies which are companies incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to
us and to the other auditors of such subsidiary and associate companies
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Parent Company, the subsidiary or any of such
associate companies from any persons or entitics, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Parent Company, the subsidiary or any of such
associated companies shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that
performed by the auditors of the subsidiary and associate companies which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that
has caused us or the auditors to believe that thc representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.
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vi.

The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Parent Company is in
compliance with section 123 of the Act. Thc subsidiary and associate
companies which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid any
dividend during the year and have not proposed final dividend for the year.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable with effcct from April 1, 2023 to the
Parent Company and its subsidiary and associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g)
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 316071E

q(\CPWJA

J.K. PANDYA
PARTNER

Membership Number: 052678

Kolkata, August 28, 2023
UDIN: 223052 638BGYZVPS535E
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Western Carriers (India)
Limited

Refer to the paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Western Carriers (India) Limited on the consolidated financial statements
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Western
Carriers (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the “Parent”) and its subsidiary
company, which includes internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

. The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary company and its associate
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“ the Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI)”.] These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with
rcference to consolidated financial statements of the Parent, its subsidiary company and
its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements was established and m ined and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors of the subsidiary company and associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Parent’s internal financial control system.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

-
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Opinion

. In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the branch auditors and other
auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent, its subsidiary
company and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

. Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company and three associate
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

] ‘K'PM«C«}Q

J.K. PANDYA
PARTNER
Membership Number: 052678

Kolkata, August 28, 2023
UDIN: 23052638 BaGY z2WMP 5358




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notis As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(I) Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 553.49 363.41
(b) Capital work in progress 4 168.16 94 .81
(c) Right of use assets 5 44.62 3741
(d) Goodwill 6 310.00 310.00
(e) Other Intangible assets 6 1.19 1.45
(f) Equity accounted investments 7 3221 32.07
(g) Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 747 747
(ii) Other financial assets 9 140.43 25691
(h) Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 29.95 27.06
(i) Other non-current assets 11 5.00 5.00
(J) Income-tax Assets (Net) 12 123.00 49 .56
Total Non-current assets 1,415.52 1,185.15
(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 13 3,896.56 3,113.89
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 14.46 2545
(iii) Other bank balances 15 182.08 107.25
(iv) Loans 16 179.63 163.49
(v) Other financial assets 9 46.10 55.84
(b) Other current assets 11 307.05 252.22
Total current assets 4,625.88 3,718.14
Total Assets 6,041.40 4,903.29
(IT) Equity and Liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17 393.50 393.50
(b) Other equity 18 2,790.51 2,180.26
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent 3,184.01 2,573.76
Non-controlling Interest 2.06 2.06
Total equity 3,186.07 2,575.82
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 366.76 208.15
(ii) Lease liabilities 5 28.25 25.88
(b) Long-term provisions 21 39.50 22.04
Total Non-current liabilities 434.51 256.07
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 19 1,737.95 1,295.81
(ii) Lease liabilities 5 20.55 15.24
(i11) Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 37.38 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 502.91 649.50
(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 78.58 61.02
(b) Short-term provisions 21 325 2.68
(c) Other current liabilities 23 40.20 47.15
Total current liabilities 2,420.82 2,071.40
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,041.40 4,903.29
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements 1-50

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E

qKPMHﬂ

J.K. PANDYA

Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 28, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e g,

Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Manpging Director Whole time Director
DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232
i)?uuuuh—; Co\b”“"‘\[‘
> 4
Dinesh Kumar Mantri Sapna Kochar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Netes For the year ended | For the year ended
; March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(1) Revenue from operations 24 16,330.63 14,708.75
(2) Other income 25 47.77 49.14
(3) Total Income (1) +(2) 16,378.40 14,757.89
(4) Expenses
(a) Operational expenses 26 14,213.42 12,804.09
(b) Employee benefits expense 27 417.52 370.37
(c) Finance costs 28 151.16 139.20
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 152.65 116.00
(e) Other expenses 30 483.11 494 .63
Total Expenses (4) 15,417.86 13,924.29
(5) Profit before tax and share of profits or loss of associates (3) - (4) 960.54 833.60
(6) Share of profit of associates 0.14 0.07
(7) Profit before tax (5) - (6) 960.68 833.67
(8) Tax Expense
(a) Current tax 10
(i) Current tax for current year 245.56 223.58
(ii) Current tax for the earlier years - -
(b) Deferred tax 10
(i) Deferred tax for current year (0.53) (1.20)
Total tax expense (6) 245.03 222.38
(9) Profit for the vear (5) - (6) 715.65 611.29
(10) Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of the employees defined benefit plans (9.39) (2.58)
(ii) Income tax relating to above items 2.36 0.65
Total other comprehensive income (8) (7.03) (1.93)
(11) Total comprehensive income for the year (7 + 8) 708.62 609.36
(12) Earnings per equity share (Face value of share of Rs. 10 each) 31
Basic earnings per share 9.09 177
Diluted earnings per share 9.09 7.77
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements 1-50 - -

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 31607 1E

3"4-?%«6/1

~(
JK. PANDYA \« X
Partner \
Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 28, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P
GZ él-gﬁaﬂ.' -
Rgjendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Mgnaging Director Whole time Director '
100267974 DIN: 00267232 ‘
teweenls é“w '“ .

Dinesh Kumar Mantri
Chief Financial Officer

Sapna Kochar
Company Secretary
Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for year ended March 31, 2023

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(A) Cash flows from operating activities :
Net Profit before taxes 960.68 833.67

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 152.65 116.00

Finance costs 151.16 139.20

Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.02 -

Loss on redemption of preference shares - 23.49

Allowance for doubtful debts 1.42 1.07

Interest Income (31.02) (35.07)

Share of profit / (loss) of associates (0.14) (0.07)
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,234.77 1,078.29
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current financial assets (0.40) 0.03

(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets - (4.05)

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (784.09) (591.44)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current financial assets 9.74 -

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets (54.83)) (57.50)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other non-current financial liabilities = z

Increase/(Decrease) in long-term provisions 8.07 4.79

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (109.21)) (129.81)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other current financial liabilities 39.99 (2.09)

Increase/(Decrease) in short-term provisions 0.57 041

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (6.95) 9.37
Cash generated from operations 337.66 308.00

Direct Taxes paid (319.00)) (256.13)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities 18.66 51.87

|(B) Cash flows from investing activities :

Payments for acquisition of Property, plant and equipment (415.10) (155.49)

Payments for acquisition of Intangible assets (0.29) (0.30)

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 0.02

Loans given / repaid (net) (16.14) 117.18

Interest Received 31.02 35.07

Acquisition of investment in associate (0.00) (11.00)

Term deposits (placed) / matured (net) 42.05 (15.52)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) investing activities (358.44) (30.06)

(C) Cash flows from financing activities :

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings 361.31 76.11

Repayment of Long-term borrowings (143.82) (103.38)

Repayment of preference shares - (150.00)

Proceeds from / (repayment) of short-term borrowings 383.26 290.98

Principal lease payments (22.43) (15.10)

Interest paid on lease obligations (5.01 )L (4.73)

Payment of interest on Preference Shares (1.50)

Dividend Paid (98.37)

Other interest payments (146.15) (123.04)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities 328.79 (30.66)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (.~\+-B+C) (10.99) (8.85)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 25.45 34.30
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14.46 25.45
Components of Cash and Cash equivalents

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash in hand 4.37 6.04

Balances with bank in current accounts 10.09 19.41

Total 14.46 2545




Notes:

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method which prescribed under Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows.

Refer to note 36 for disclosure related to paragraph 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements 1-50

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E

Txf W
J.K. PANDYA
Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 28, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Marnjaging Director Whole time Director
DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232
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Dinesh Kumar Mantri Sapna Kochar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

a. Equity Share Capital

Notes Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2021 17 393.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 17 393.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 17 393.50

b. Other Equity
& Surpl
Reserves- urplus oG
Notes Retained Caplta! Remeasurment of]| Equity Total
Rarsings Redemption |employee defined | 11ctruments
Reserve benefits
Balance as at April 1, 2021 1,570.85 - 0.37 (0.32) 1,570.90
Profit for the year 18 611.29 - - - 611.29
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 18 (1.93) - (1.93)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve (150.00) 150.00 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,032.14 150.00 (1.56) (0.32) 2,180.26
Profit for the year 715.65 - - - 715.65
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - (7.03) - (7.03)
Dividend Paid* (98.37) (98.37))
Transfer to capital redemption reserve 18 - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,649.42 150.00 (8.59) (0.32) 2,790.51
*The interim dividend paid during the year ended March 31, 2023 is ¥2.50 per Ordinary share (face value 210 each, fully paid-up).
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements 1-50
This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date
For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E
c ________._.—-—"‘"""‘ 4:‘ ; m. -
Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
f‘ Managing Director Whole time Director
\J . K X POM\A 4 DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232

J.K. PANDYA S5, L) Dinesh Kumar Mantri Sapna Kochar
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership Number: 52678 Membership Number: A56298

Kolkata, August 28, 2023
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General Information
The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Western Carriers (India) Limited (the Parent/Company) and its subsidiary

(collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in India under the provisions of the
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is located at 206, Central Plaza, 2/6, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata. West

Bengal-700020.

The Group is a major player in the Indian logistics industry and engaged in providing freight and other transportation services, warehousing
contracts ranging from a few months to a few years. Certain accessorial services are also being provided to its customers under their transportation
contracts, such as unloading and other incidental services.

The Group has a subsidiary named Western Skyvilla Private Limited and three associates named Success Suppliers Private Limited, SMP
Properties Private Limited and F M Carriers Private Limited respectively. The Company and its subsidiary is together referred to as the Group.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements comply with all material aspect of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rule, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Group’s functional currency. All amounts have

been rounded-off to the nearest Millions upto two decimal, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities which are
measured at fair values.

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the consolidated financial statements, which may cause material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are provided below:

(a) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — useful lives
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation
is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives
and residual values of the Group’s assets are determined by the Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at the end of each reporting period. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets.

(b) Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate: future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Lease classification, termination and renewal option of leases

Ind AS 116, Leases requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or
terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-
lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that the Group will continue the lease beyond non-cancellable period and
whether any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any
significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term. costs relating to the terminating the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to Group's operations taking in to account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The
lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current
and future economic conditions, the Group has concluded that no material changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease
contracts.

(¢

—

(d) Impairment of Goodwill
The Group estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering current economic
conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The
estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Refer Note 6 for additional details.
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Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets

and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Group regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values, then the Group assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e.. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Group recognises transfer
between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of Consolidation

(a) Subsidiary
Subsidiary is entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiary
is included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

(b) Equity accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in associates.

When the Group has significant influence over the other entity. it considers such interests as associates. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the entity but is not control or joint control over the entity.

The results, assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using equity method of accounting
after making necessary adjustments to achieve uniformity in application of accounting policies, wherever applicable.

An investment in associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Gain or loss in respect of changes in other equity of associates resulting in divestment or dilution of
stake in the associates is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

On acquisition of investment in a associate, any excess of cost of investment over the fair value of the assets and liabilities of the associate, is
recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying value of the investment in the associate. The excess of fair value of assets and
liabilities over the investment is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve. The unrealised profits/losses on transactions with associates
are eliminated by reducing the carrying amount of investment. The carrying amount of investment in associates is reduced to recognise
impairment, if any, when there is evidence of impairment.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate). the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

~—

Obtaining control over existing investment
The difference between the fair value of the initial interest as at the date of obtaining control and its book value has been recognised in the

statement of profit and loss.

(c

(d) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains and losses arising from intra-Group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified current when it is:

(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle:

(b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading:

(c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period: or

(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least t

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is classified current when:

(a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle:

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading:

() It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Financial instruments

(a)

(b)

Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities

are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or Fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI')

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI') if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and cash flows from sales: and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Equity instruments are always classified fair value through profit and loss, except in cases where the Group has elected an irrevocable option
of designating the same as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL :

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FYOCI :

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income i.e.. subsequent changes in fair value of the
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income. Any dividend received on such instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses. including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

4 -
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(¢) Derecognition
Financial assets:
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain

control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities:

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Impairment of financial assets
Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through other

comprehensive income.
The Group recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For financial assets (apart from trade receivables that do not constitute of financing transaction) whose credit risk has not significantly
increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk of the financial asset has significantly increased since initial recognition.

(e) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. Such revenue is recognised upon the Group’s performance

of'its contractual obligations and on satisfying all the following conditions:

(1) Parties to the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform their respective obligations;

(2) Such contract has specified the respective rights and obligations of the parties in connection with the transfer of goods or rendering of services
(hereinafter the “Transfer™);

(3) Such contract contains specific payment terms in relation to the Transfer;

(4) Such contract has a commercial nature, namely. it will change the risk. time distribution or amount of the Group’s future cash flow:

(5) The Group is likely to recover the consideration it is entitled to for the Transfer to customers.

Revenue is recognised when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration. The amount recognised as revenue is
exclusive of all indirect taxes and net of returns and discounts.

(a) Rendering of services

The Group generates revenue from services to its customers such as providing freight and other transportation services, warchousing contracts
ranging from a few months to a few years. Certain accessorial services may be provided to customers under their transportation contracts,
such as unloading and other incidental services. The Group’s performance obligations are satisfied over time as customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits of the Group’s services. The contracts contain a single performance obligation, as the distinct services
provided remain substantially the same over time and possess the same pattern of transfer. The transaction price is based on the consideration
specified in the contract with the customer and contains fixed and variable consideration. In general, the fixed component of a contract
represents amounts for facility and equipment costs incurred to satisfy the performance obligation and is recognized over the term of the
contract.

In the case of transportation services, performance obligation is created when a customer under a transportation contract submits a shipment
note for the transport of goods from origin to destination. These performance obligations are satisfied over the period as the shipments move
from origin to destination and revenue is recognized proportionally as a shipment moves and the related costs are recognized as incurred.
Performance obligations are short-term, with transit days less than one week. Generally, customers are billed upon completion of shipment,
and remit payment according to approved payment terms. The Group recognizes revenue on a net basis when the Group does not control the

(b) Contract balances

Contract assets )
A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from inspection services because the receipt of consides: "tional on
successful completion of the inspection. Upon completion of the inspection, the amount recognised as contrag edtq_trade

receivables.
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Trade receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional is due from the customer (i.e., only the passage of time is

required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies for financial assets for initial and subsequent measurements.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied

with. When the grant relates to an expense item. it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful
life of the related asset.

Income Taxes

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax

laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group or
companies within the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates ('the functional currency'). The Group's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s or Parent Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group in its functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies

for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting
date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss unless they relates to the qualifying cash
flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions.

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or_receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.
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Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Construction in

progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of Property, plant and equipment includes the costs directly attributable to the acquisition or constructions of assets, or replacing parts of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for qualifying assets. if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with them will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Advance given for acquisition / construction of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets are presented as "Capital Advance" under
Other Non Current Assets.
The assets in the process of construction or acquisition but not ready for management's intended use are included under Capital Work in progress.

Depreciation is provided on written down value method in the manner and on the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013. Depreciation on addition / deduction is calculated pro-rata from/to the month of addition / deduction.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient
obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
The estimated useful lives of the assets considered by the Company is stated hereunder:

Assets Description Useful Life in Years
Office Building 60
Heavy Equipments 15
Heavy Vehicles 6
Office Appliances 5
Computer 3
Other Machinery 15
Motor Cycle.Scooter 10
Motor Vehicles 8
Furniture 10
Electrical Equipments 10

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate

modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments o
b O Q\%

ered Accouties

The Group's lease obligations are presented on the face of the Balance Sheet.
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3.12

3.13

3.14

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating

leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in

which they are earned.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at

cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life (5 years for computer software) and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i... at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying value of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss immediately.

Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

If the effect of lhc ume value of money is material, prowsnons are discounted usmg a current pre-lax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks

Disclosure for contmgent Tiabilities is made when there is a posstb!e obllgatlon arlsmg from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term highly liquid deposits with
a maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits \A‘ —

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 3 Q}he end qf the pm Which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of thre;{omng pepipd Andhare :i%‘iu ) at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current\etnployee S.upder other
financial liabilities in balance sheet.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Post - employment benefits
The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at

the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually at year end by actuaries using
the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.
This cost is included in ‘Employee Benefits Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. These are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the

balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plan

The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident fund as per local regulations. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

reduction in the future payments is available.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
* the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential

equity shares.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as reduction,

net of tax from the proceeds.

Cash dividend
The Group recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised. and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Group. As per the corporate laws of India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker ('CODM’).The
CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and has been identified as the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Amendment to Ind AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Instruments”

The amendments require Group to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, together with other information can reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of primary users of general
purpose financial statements. The Group does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that., on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Group does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting
estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities use measurement techniques and inputs to d counting estimates
if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement- ‘ri"eﬂmri!y ‘\'{‘lsm does not
expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. Al :

7N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4: Property, plant and equipment

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Office Heavy Heavy Office " Motor Other . Electrical
Building Equipment Vehicles Appliances Conigter Vehicles Machinery Tardury Equipment i
Cost
Balance at April 1, 2021 - 353.96 820.17 11.13 8.27 34.68 20.13 16,92 5.34 1,270.60
Additions 1.92 2751 847 0.79 1.50 3.73 55.07 0.63 0.34 99.96
Disposals - = - = » % = =
Balance at March 31, 2022 1.92 381.47 828.64 11.92 9.77 38.41 75.20 17.55 5.68 1,370.56
Additions - 111.70 91.33 0.99 1.51 047 108.30 3.21 1.81 319.32
Disposals - - - (0.13) - - “ - (0.13)
Balance ;_Ma_th 31,2023 1.92 493.17 919.97 12.78 11.28 38.88 183.50 20.76 7.49 1,689.75
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at April 1, 2021 - 169.39 676.99 9.32 6.39 25.17 6.02 11.85 2.87 908.00
Depreciation expense 0.06 36.41 49.76 0.82 1.49 333 522 1.38 0.68 99.15
Disposals - - - = = % & =
Balance at March 31, 2022 0.06 205.80 726.75 10.14 7.88 28.50 11.24 13.23 3.55 1,007.15
Depreciation expense 0.09 46.45 55.39 0.94 1.52 2.96 19.97 1.18 0.70 129.20
Disposals - - - (0.09), - - - - - (0.09)
Balance at March 31, 2023 0.15 252.25 782.14 10.99 9.40 31.46 31.21 14.41 4.25 1,136.26 |
Carrying amount - ol _ I, i
Balance at March 31, 2022 1.86 175.67 101.89 1.78 1.89 9.91 63.96 4.32 2.13 363.41
Balance at March 31, 2023 1.77 240.92 137.83 1.79 1.88 7.42 152.29 6.35 3.24 553.49
Note:
(a) The Company has chosen to apply Ind AS retrospectively to determine the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment as on the date of transition i.e. April 1, 2020,
(b) Refer Note 19 for details of security against borrowings.
Movement in Capital work in progress and its age analysis
(i) Movement in Capital work in progress
3T, 2023 022
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Balance at the beginning of the year 94.81 6.20
Additions during the year 96.98 9481
Capitalised during the year (23.63) (6.20)
Balance at the end of the year 168.16 94 .81
(ii) Age analysis of Capital work in progress
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars st Ito2years |2todyears niore Sian Total
1 year 3 years
Heavy Vehicles 66.42 - - - 66.42
Property 30.57 71.17 101.74
Total 96.99 71.17 - = 168.16
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Lesythan | to2 years |2to3 years Mars fhiap Total
1 year 3 years
Heavy Vehicles 23.64 - - - 23.64
Property 71.17 1117
Total 94.81 - - - 94.81

(i1i) Thre are no project whose completion are ovedue or has exceeded its cost, as compared to its original plan for both the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5: Right of use assets

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

The Group has taken on lease various offices, warchouses other spaces for its uses. Rental contracts typically range from 1 year to 10 years.

A. The changes in the carrying value of Right of Use assets :

Particulars Buildings
Gross Block
Balance as at April 1, 2021 65.86
Additions during the year 0.87
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year =
Balance as at March 31, 2022 66.73
Additions during the year 30.11
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 96.84 |
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 13.00
Charge for the year 16.32
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 29.32
Charge for the year 2290
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 52.22 |
Carrying Amount
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 37.41 |
44.62

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

The aggregate depreciation expense on RoU assets is included under depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B  Movement in lease liabilities :

Particulars Lease Obligations
Balance as at April 1, 2021 5535
Additions during the year 0.87
Deletions during the year =
Finance cost accrued during the year 4.73
Payment of lease labilities (19.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 41.12
Additions during the year 30.11
Deletions during the year -
Interest on lease obligation 5.01
Payment of lease labilities (27.44)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 48.80
C The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at the year end:
As at As at

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current 20.55 15.24
Non-current 28.25 25.88
Total 48.80 41.12

With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as a
right of use asset and a lease liability. Payments made for short term leases and leases of low-value are expensed on a straight line basis over the

lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at the year end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Less than one year 24.06 18.46
One to five years 30.40 29.18
More than five years s 2
Total 54.46 47.64

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk regards to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligation related

to the lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

The amount recoEnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 22.90 16.32

Interest expense on lease liabilities 5.01 4.73

Rent expense - short-term lease and leases of low value assets 30.90 26.60

58.81 47.65

Total

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in various leases. These are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of the extension and termination options held are exercisable by the Group and not by the

respective lessor.
Discounting rate

The Group has used the incremental borrowing rate of 10% (FY 2021-22: 10%) to determine the lease liabilities.

)

—

T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Note 6: Goodwill and other intangible assets

Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill Tradimark Computer Total
Software
Cost / Deemed cost
Balance at April 1, 2021 310.00 - 2.92 2.92
Additions - - 0.30 0.30
Disposals 2 - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 310.00 - 3.22 3.22
Additions - - 0.29 0.29
Disposals - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 310.00 - 3.51 3.51
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at April 1, 2021 - - 1.24 1.24
Amortisation expense - - 0.53 0.53
Disposals - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 - - 1.77 197
Amortisation expense - - 0.55 0.55
Disposals - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 - - 2.32 2.32
Carrying amount
Balance at March 31, 2022 310.00 - 1.45 1.45
Balance at March 31, 2023 310.00 - 1.19 1.19

* below the rounding off amount
Note:
The goodwill is attributable to purchase of the business from M/s Western Carriers, erstwhile proprietorship firm owned by Mr. Rajendra Sethia.
The goodwill was tested for impairment as at March 31, 2023, and on that basis the recoverable amount was determined to be higher than the

carrying amount of goodwill.
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 7: Equity accounted investments
As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
In associates- At Cost
Success Suppliers Private Limited 17.00 17.00
1,700,000 (As at March 31, 2022 - 1,700,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up:
Less: Share of profit/(loss) (0.51)] (0.55)
16.49 16.45
SMP Properties Private Limited 4.82 4.82
1,515 (As at March 31, 2022 - 1,515 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up:
Less: Share of profit/(loss) (0.20) (0.20)
4.62 4.62
F M Carriers Private Limited
45,835 (As at March 31, 2021 - 45,835) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up: 11.00 11.00
Less: Share of profit/(loss) 0.10 -
11.10 11.00
Total investments in associates 32.21 32.07
Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments 32.21 32.07
Note 8: Investments
As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
In Others
Investments designated at fair value through OCI
Western Apartment Private Limited 747 747
790,000 (As at March 31, 2022 - 790,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up;
Total Non-current investment 7.47 7.47
Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments 7.47 7.47
Note 9: Other financial assets
As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Non current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits 9.44 9.04
(b) Fixed deposits maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date# 130.99 247.87
Total Other financial assets - non current 140.43 256.91
(ii) Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)
(a) Security Deposits 46.10 55.84
46.10 55.84

Total Other financial assets - current

#Deposits balances in the account are not due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date are primarily placed as security with banks as collateral and margin money for

bank guarantce of Rs. 130.99 Millions (As at March 31, 2022: Rs 199.54 Millions ).

Note 10: Income Taxes

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(a) Analysis of Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(i) Amount recognised in profit or loss
(a) Current tax for the current year 245.56 223.58
(b) Deferred tax for the current year (0.53) (1.20)
245.03 222.38
(ii) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
(a) Deferred tax for the current year 2.36 0.65
2.36 0.65
247.39 223.03
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Accounting Profit before tax 960.54 833.60
At India's statutory Income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2022: 25.168%) 241.75 209.80
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income 3.28 12,58
Income tax expense reported 245.03 222.38

The Group has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019. Accordingly.

the Group has recognised provision for income tax for the year ended on March 31, 2023 onwards and remeasured their deferred tax balances by
section.

ribed in the said
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

FY 2022-23 1
Deferred tax Deferred tax
Ba.larl!:e at e.xpense.f e.xpensef Bakiics it
beginning of (income) (income) ————
the year recognised in recognised in N y
profit and loss 0OClI
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 523 (6.83) - 12.06
Provisions for employee benefits 6.22 (218) (2.36) 10.76
Lease liabilities 10.35 (1.93) - 12.28
Fair value changes of investments 0.11 * - 0.11
Allowance for credit losses 11.10 (0.36) - 11.46
Total deferred tax assets 33.01 (11.30) (2.36) 46.67 |
Deferred tax liabilities
Right of Use Assets (5.95) 10.77 - (16.72)
Total deferred tax liabilities (5.95) 10.77 - (16.72)
Net deferred tax assets 27.06 (0.53) (2.36) 29.95
FY 2021-22
Deferred tax Deferred tax
Ba!an-ce at e.xpensel e.xpensel Bikiicaatind
beginning of (income) (income) ?
the year recognised in recognised in e
nrofit and lass QCl
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 9.38 4.16 - 5.23
Provisions for employee benefits 4.26 (1.31) (0.65) 6.22
Lease liabilities 13.93 3.58 - 10.35
Fair value changes of investments 0.11 - - 0.11
Allowance for credit losses 10.83 (0.27) - 11.10
Total deferred tax assets 38.51 6.16 (0.65-) 33.01
Deferred tax liabilities
Right of Use Assets (13.30) (7.36) - (5.95)
Total deferred tax liabilities (13.30) (7.36) - (5.95)
Net deferred tax assets 25.21 (1.20) (0.65) 27.06
Note 11: Other Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(i) Non Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Capital Advances 5.00 5.00
Total Other non current assets 5.00 5.00
(ii) Current

(a) Advances to port authorities and other service providers 2.79 7.99

(b) GST receivable 143.88 103.21

(c) Advances to employees 26.04 2529

(d) Other advances 134.34 115.73
Total Other current assets 307.05 252.22
Note 12: Income-tax Assets (Net)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Advance taxes (including tax deducted at sources)
[Net of provisions for taxes Rs. 245.56 Millions, As at March 31, 2022: Rs. 223.58 Millions] 123.00 49.56
Total income-tax assets (Net) 123.00 49.56
Note 13: Trade receivables
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Trade receivables, unsecured, considered good 3,896.56 3,113.89
Trade receivables, having significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables, credit impaired 45.52 44.10
3,942.08 3,157.99
Less: Allowances for expected credit losses (45.52) (44.10)
Total Trade receivables 3,896.56 3,113.89
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Disclosure of contract balances as per Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Contract balances
Trade receivable - Billed 2,769.32 2,737.41
Trade receivable - Unbilled 1,172.76 420.&
Total Contract balances 3,942.08 3,157.99
There is no contract liabilities (Advance from customers)
Ageing of trade receivables
As at March 31, 2023
o Less than 6 | 6 months | 1 yearto2 2 yearsto3 More than 3
Age bracket Unbilled idnthi to 1 year - Y Yoy i Total
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 1,172.76 2,629.22 72.25 10.06 5.18 8.79 3,898.26
Undisputed trade receivables —considered doubtful - - - - - - »
Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - - - 43.82 43.82
Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - = - - =
Total Ageing of receivables 1,172.76 2,629.22 72.25 10.06 5.18 52.61 3,942.08
As at March 31, 2022
Age bracket Unbilled Less than 6 | 6 months | 1 yearto2 2 years to 3 More than 3 Total
months to | year years vears years
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 420.58 2,637.44 44.38 6.66 253 2,58 311417
Undisputed trade receivables —considered doubtful - - - - - - =
Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - - - 43.82 43.82
Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - - - - - -
Total Ageing of receivables 420.58 2,637.44 44.38 6.66 2.53 46.40 3,157.99 |

Note:

(a) The ageing has been determined from the date they were invoiced to the customers. Refer Note 37 on credit risk for more details.

(b) Movement in allowances for expected credit loss

(¢) No trade receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Company, or from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, director or member.

For the year

For the year

ended ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Allowances for expected credit losses at the beginning of the year 44.10 43.03
Allowances created during the year [Refer note 30] 1.42 1.07
Allowances for expected credit losses at the end of the year .52 4410
Note 14: Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Cash in hand ' 437 6.04
Balances with bank in current accounts 10.09 19.41
Balances with bank in deposit accounts* - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 14.46 25.45
*Original maturity of less than three months
Note 15: Other bank balances
As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Balances with bank in deposit accounts#

182.08

107.25

Total other bank balances

182.08

107.25

#Deposits balances in the account are due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date, but original maturity of more than three months are primarily placed as security
with banks as collateral and margin money for bank guarantee of Rs. 182.09 Millions (As at March 31, 2022: Rs 103.98 Millions ).
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Note 16: Loans

As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

(i) Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Loans to body corporates and others 179.63 163.49
Total loan - current 179.63 163.49
Information relating to Loans granted to related parties repayable on demand

As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanding 125.67 120.67
Percentage to the total Loans and Advances in the nature of loans 69.96% 73.81%

Note 16.1

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons/
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (‘ultimate beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 16.2

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding party”) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Group shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party (ultimate beneficiaries); or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Note 16.3
There are no outstanding loans/advances in nature of loan from promoters, key management personnel or other officers of the Parent Company.
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Note 17: Equity share capital

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised share capital
100,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each* 500.00 450.00
(As at March 31, 2022: 45,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
15,000,000 Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each# 150.00 150.00
(As at March 31, 2022: 15,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
Total authorised share capital 650.00 600.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
78,699,400 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up* 393.50 393.50
(As at March 31, 2022: 39,349,700 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up)
Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 393.50 393.50

# Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares has been issued, subscribed and fully paid up, however are classified as financial liabilities. Refer Note 19 for

additional details.

* There was a sub-division of the existing 3,93,49,700 equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each fully paid up into 7,86,99,400 equity shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up,
which was approved by the shareholders of the Parent Company at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on March 31, 2023. The record date for the said sub-division

was March 30, 2023

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

For the _veEr ended

March 31, 2023

]

March 31, 2022

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,93,49,700 393.50 3,93,49,700 393.50
Increase on account of sub-division of shares 3,93,49,700 - - -
Balance at the end of the year 7,86,99,400 393.50 3.93,49,700 393.50

(b) Details of equity shares held by the promoters at the year end

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Name
No. of shares* Yoage holding No. of shares* Yage holding
Rajendra Sethia # 7,86,90,200 99.99% 3,93,45.100 99.99%
Kanishka Sethia 4,920 0.00% 2,460 0.00%
7,86,95,120 99.99% 3,93,47,560 99.99%

* There are no changes in the promoters shareholding as at the end of any of the years presented.

(¢) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares issued by the Company

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after the payment of all the preferential amounts.

(d) Details of equity shares held by equity shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares

Yoage holding

No. of shares

Yoage holding

Rajendra Sethia #

7,86,90,200

99.99%

3.93.45.100

99.99%

7,86,90,200

99.99%

3,93,45,100

99.99%

# Subsequent to March 31, 2023, Rajendra Sethia Family Trust ("Trust' or 'Family Trust’) has been created and Rajendra Sethia has transferred 1,000 shares to the said Trust

on May 23, 2023,

Note 18: Other equity

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Retained earnings 2,649.42 2,032.14
Remeasurement of employee defined benefits (8.59) (1.56)
FVOCI -Equity investments (0.32) (0.32)
Capital redemption reserve 150.00 150.00
2,790.51 2,180.26
Retained Earnings
As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,032.14 1,570.85
Profit for the year 715.65 611.29
Dividend Paid (98.37)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve (150.00)
Balance at the end of the year 2,649.42 2,032.14
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Remeasurement of employee defined benefits

As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year (1.56), 0.37
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (7.03) (1.93)
(8.59) (1.56)
FVOCI - Equity Instruments
As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.32) (0.32)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
(0.32)] (0.32

(a) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to reserves, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained
earnings is a free reserve available to the Group.

(b) Remeasurement of employee defined benefits
Remeasurement of employee defined benefits represents re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

(¢) FVOCI equity investments

The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated
within the FVOCI equity investments reserve within equity. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are
derecognised.

(d) Capital redemption reserve

The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Companies Act”) requires that where a Parent Company redeem its preference shares out of free reserves or securities premium, a sum
equal to the nominal value of the preference shares so redeemed shall be transferred to a capital redemption reserve and details of such transfer shall be disclosed in the
balance sheet. The capital redemption reserve may be applied by the Parent Company, in paying up unissued shares of the Parent Company to be issued to shareholders
of the Parent Company as fully paid bonus shares.
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Note 19: Borrowings

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
A. Non-current
(a) Secured borrowings
Term loans from banks
(i) Vehicles Finance 308.59 71.87
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (112.55) (57.12)
196.04 14.75
(ii) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines (GECL) 155.80 199.54
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (46.90) (43.74)!
108.90 155.80
(iii) Housing loan 63.80 39.29
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (1.98) (1.69)
61.82 37.60
(b) Unsecured borrowings
1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares (Refer Note (b) below)
Total Long-term borrowings 366.76 208.15
B. Current
(a) Secured borrowings
(1) Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Cash Credits 1,538.00 1,156.97
- Overdraft 16.71 15.80
(i) Current maturities of long-term borrowings
- Vehicles Finance 112.55 57.12
- Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines 46.90 43.74
- Housing loan 1.98 1.69
(b) Unsecured borrowings
- From Body Corporate - Related party 6.65 6.65
- From Directors and their relatives 12.96 7.10
- From Others 2.20 6.74
Total Short-term borrowings 1,737.95 1,295.81
Total borrowings 2,104.71 1,503.96
(a) Term loans from banks
(i) Vehicle Finance
The above loans are secured by hypothecation of Vehicle/Equipment purchased out of the above Loan.
Amount Amount
Fotal n. ot Earliest Start Date| Maturity Rate of Interest sutstancing sutstanding
Instalments As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
December 20,
HDFC Bank 35-37 February 20, 2021 | 2023 - May 20, | 6.76%-8.26% 205.61 39.94
2026
Kotak Mahindra 37 June 10,2022 J]\“;;jc']flzggf pl RAIT PEA 102.98 31.93
308.59 71.87

(ii) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines
(GECL)

The above loans are 100% guaranteed by National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company along with secured by hypothecation by way of Second Charge on book debts and collaterally secured
by movable properties of the Company and immovable propertics owned by Shri Rajendra Sethia and personally guaranteed by Kanishka Sethia and Rajendra Sethia. Director of the

Company.
Amount Amount
Total No.of | o ectStartDat] Maturity | Rateof Interest| °Vtt2nding sutstaniing
Instalments Asat As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
48 equal monthly
HDFC Bank instalments after February 7, 2021 January 7, 2026 8.25% 48.94 63.66
moratorium of | year
36 equal monthly
Kotak Mahindra instalments after January 7, 2021 |December 7, 2024 8.25% 26.93 40.72
moratorium of 1 year
49-47 equal monthly
Indian Bank instalments afier |\ op 152021 | January 15,2028 8.30% 79.93 95.16
moratorium of 11-25
months
155.80 199.54
(iii) Housing loan
The above loan is personally guaranteed by Shri Rajendra Semi'l Director of the Company.
Amount Amount
TRt o Earliest Start Date Maturity Rate of Interest outstaniiing antitonding
Instalments X As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
HDFC Bank 180 May20,2021 | May31,2036 | S5 opaona ; e T (2959
g < variable ra

(b) 1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares

1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (Preference shares) were issued on March 27, 2014 for a term of 10 years. The
and accordingly on the transition to Ind AS, it was fair valued and the difference between the carrying amount and fair value (as on
was recognised in other equity. The Company has redeemed the preference shares on March 10, 2022, earlier than its maturity date.
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

(c) Unsecured borrowings from others
Unsecured borrowings from others represents borrowings from body corporates, which is repayable on demand.

(d) Quarterly return or statements filed with banks

The Parent Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the banks in lieu of the sanctioned working capital facilities. There was no material difference between the amount of trade
receivables (billed) reported to the banks, except for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, whereby the reported amount of trade receivables (billed) were higher by Rs.
31.75 millions and lower by Rs. 264.80 millions respectively. Such differences were due to adjustments pursuant to reconciliation with the customers.

(e) wilful defaulter

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any

government authority.

(f) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Register of Company (ROC)

The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Note 20: Other financial liabilities

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Current
(a) Payable to cmployees 36.44 34.19
(b) Other payables 42.14 26.83
Total Other financial liabilities 78.58 61.02
Other current payable includes payable to capital creditors of Rs. 1.20 Millions (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 23.63 Millions)
Note 21: Provisions
Asat Asat
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Non-current
Provisions for employee benefits
Employee defined benefit obligation - Gratuity [Refer note 33] 39.50 22.04
Total Long-term provisions 39.50 22.04
Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Emplovee defined benefit obligation - Gratuity [Refer note 33] 3.25 2.68
Total Short-term provisions 3.25 2.68
Note 22: Trade payables
As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note (b) below) 37.38 -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 502,91 649.50
Total Trade payables 540.29 649.50
Agcing of trade payables
As at March 31, 2023
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years MD::;:':“ s Total
MSME - - - - -
Others 502.91 - - 502.91
Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -
Disputed Dues- Others = = = =
Total 502.91 - - - 502.91
As at March 31, 2022
More than 3
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
years
MSME - - - -
Others 649.50 - - - 649.50
Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -
Disputed Dues- Others - a - e
Total 649.50 - - - 649.50
(a) The ageing has been determined from the date of the invoice.
(b) Refer Note 33 for additional information required under the MSME Act, 2006.
(c) There are no disputed dues of any creditors as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively
Note 23: Other current liabilities
As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
(a) Statutory Dues 40.20 47.15
(b) Deferred Income - -
Total Other current liabilities 40.20 47.15

~—
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Note 24: Revenue from operations

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from contract with customers
(a) Revenue from Freight, Handling, Agency & Other Charges 16,330.63 14,708.75
Total revenue from operations 16,330.63 14,708.75

Note:

(a) The Group recognises revenue when control over the services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group

expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

(b) The Group does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) The Group recognises revenue from rendering of services overtime, as and when such services are performed.

Note 25: Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
(i) Interest income from loans to body corporate and others 13.47 17:51
(ii) Interest income from deposits with banks 1755 17.56
(b) Insurance claims 9.07 4.12
(¢) Other miscellaneous income 7.68 9.95
Total other income 47.77 49.14

Note 26: Operational expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Freight, Handling & Other Charges 14,213.42 12,804.09
Total Operational expenses 14,213.42 12,804.09

Note 27: Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus 353.86 313.99
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 23.37 14.71
(c) Gratuity (Refer note 33) 9.02 5.53
(d) Staff welfare expenses 31.21 36.14
Total employee benefits expense 417.52 370.37
Note 28: Finance costs
For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- Interest expenses on short-term borrowings from banks and financial institutions 112.12 80.85
- Interest expenses on term loans banks 26.96 34.07
- Interest expenses on Preference shares classified as liabilities - 11.43
- Interest expenses on loans from body corporate 0.56 0.59
- Interest on other long-term financial liabilities - -
(b) Interest on lease obligations 5.01 4.73
(c) Other borrowing costs 6.51 7.53
Total finance costs 151.16 139.20




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 29: Depreciation and amortisation expense

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipments 129.20 99.15
(b) Amortisation of intangible assets 0.55 0.53
(c) Depreciation of right of use assets 22.90 16.32
152.65 116.00

Total depreciation and amortisation expense

Note 30: Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Donation and subscriptions 5.92 4.03
(b) Corporate social responsibility expenses [Refer Note 40] 10.00 11.58
(c) Loss on early redemption of preference share - 2349
(d) Rent expenses 30.90 26.60

(e) Repairs and maintenance

- Vehicle and equipment 269.77 291.98
(f) Maintenance and upkeep charges 6.81 8.00
(g) Electricity expenses 5.01 3.79
(h) Bank charges 3.91 298
(i) Travelling and conveyance expenses 46.77 35.60
(j) Insurance charges 19.22 6.39
(k) Printing & stationery expenses 5.66 4.95
(1) Telephone expenses 4.00 4.14
(m) Auditors' Remuneration [Refer 30.1 below] 1.21 1.21

(n) Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment 0.02 -
(0) Allowance for doubtful debts 1.42 1.07
(p) Other general expenses 70.93 68.82

(q) Foreign Exchange fluctuation Loss 1.56 B
Total other expenses 483.11 494.63

30.1 Auditors' Remuneration

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Audit fees - statutory audit 1.06 1.06
Audit fees - tax audit 0.15 0.15
Total auditors remuneration 1.21 1,21
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 31: Earnings per share

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit after tax for the year (in Rs. Millions) 715.65 611.29
Profit available to the equity shareholders (in Rs. Millions) (a) 715.65 611.29
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 7.86,99.400 7.86,99,400
Number of equity shares at the end of the year 7,86,99.400 7,86,99.400
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (b) 7,86,99,400 7,86,99,400
Nominal value of each equity share (in Rs.) 5.00 5.00
Basic earnings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.) 9.09 7.77
Diluted earnings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.) 9.09 7.77

Earning per share calculated/ restated as applicable for year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 after considering the number of equity shares post sub-division,
keeping with the applicable Ind AS

Note 32: Contingencies and Committments
As at As at
(a) Contingent liabilities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Claims not acknowledged as debts
- Demand of Indian Railway# 5.31 531
- Income - tax ## 18.00 -

#A demand notice dated February 9, 2022 (“*Demand Notice™) was issued by the commercial supervisor, North Eastern Frontier Railways, Azara, Assam (“Respondents”) to
the Parent Company, demanding penalty of 5.31 million in relation to alleged mis-declaration of consignment by the Parent Company, and detaining the consignment
against the demand so raised. The Parent Company filed a writ petition (“Writ Petition™) before the Gauhati High Court (“High Court™) praying that the Demand Notice be
declared illegal, without any authority of law and liable to be set aside. The High Court, by an order dated February 23, 2022 held that pendency of the Writ Petition will not
act as a bar on the Respondents from verifying and re-assessing the charges in relation to alleged mis-declaration of consignment. The Parent Company appealed against this
order before the High Court. The High Court by its order dated March 16, 2022 (“Order”) directed the release of the consignment upon furnishing of a bank guarantee of
25.31 million by the Parent Company. Pursuant to this Order, the Parent Company has furnished a bank guarantee and secured release of the consignment. The Writ Petition
is currently pending.

## The Group has been advised by its lawyers that income tax demand are not tenable, and hence this is being contested. No provision in the books has been considered
necessary for the above matters. The future cash flows on account of the above cannot be determined unless the judgements/decisions are received from the ultimate judicial
forum. No reimbursements is expected to arise to the company in respect of above cases.

’ As at As at
(b) Commitments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and
not provided for related to the construction of house property at Kolkata 45.53 65.19
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Note 33: Employee Benefits
Employees Defined Contribution Plans - Provident Fund

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

The Group provides Provident Fund facility to eligible employees. The fund is managed by Commissioner of the Providend Fund. The contributions are expensed as they
are incurred in line with the treatment of wages and salaries. The liability of the Group is limited to the contribution deducted from the salary of the employee and the
Group's share. The Group has recognized, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, an amount of Rs. 19.98 Millions (for the year ended March 31, 2022: Rs

14.71 Millions) as expenses under defined contribution plans.
Employee Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity [Unfunded]

The Group provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary
multiplied by the number of years of service completed, subject to the maximum amount of Rs. 2 Million. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan. The Group does not fully

fund the liability and make the payments as and when they become due from its own funds.

Amounts recognised in the financial statements

The amounts recognised in the financial statements and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets is as under:

Fair value of

Rate of salary increase

Mortality rate during employment

Defined benefit plan assets Net amount
obligations (Unfunded)

Balance as at April 1, 2021 16.94 - 16.94
Current service cost 4.36 - 4.36
Interest expense/ income 1.17 - 117

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 5.53 - 5.53

Remeasurement -
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - = &
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 0.05 - 0.05
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience 2.53 - 2.53

Total amount recognised in OCI 2.58 - 2.58
Employer contributions/ premium paid - 0.34 0.34
Benefit payments 0.34 0.34 0.68

Balance as at March 31, 2022 24,72 - 24.72]
Current service cost 7.26 - 7.26
Interest expense/ income 1.75 - 1.75

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 9.02 - 9.02

Remeasurement
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions = = g
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (0.04) - (0.04),
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience 9.43 - 9.43

Total amount recognised in OCI 9.39 - 9.39
Employer contributions/ premium paid - 0.37 0.37
Benefit payments 0.37 0.37 0.73

[Balance as at March 31, 2023 II73 = T

Classification of the obligation into current and non current

As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Current 325 268
Non-Current 39.50 22.04
42,75 24,72
mgn{ﬁmm estimates: actuarial assumptions
As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Rate of discounting 7.30% 7.10%
6.00% 6.00%

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) ultimate

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) ultimate|




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(iii) Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 - March 31, 2022
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
changes in the weighted principal assumptions is: Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (+/- 1%) 3.60 (4.39) 2.00 (2.34)
Salary growth rate (+/- 1%) (4.60) 3.85 (243) 211

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(iv) Major categories of plans asset
The scheme is unfunded.

(v) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Pay-as-you-go Risk:

For unfunded schemes financial planning could be difficult as the benefits payable will directly affect the revenue and this could be widely fluctuating from year to year.
Moreover there may be an opportunity cost of better investment returns affecting adversely the cost of the scheme.

Discount rate risk:

The Group is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit thereby
increasing the value of the liability.

Liquidity Risk:

This risk arises from the short term asset and liability cash-flow mismatch thereby causing the Group being unable to pay the benefits as they fall due in the short term.
Such a situation could be the result of holding large illiquid assets disregarding the results of cash-flow projections and cash outgo inflow mismatch. (Or it could be due to
insufficient assets/cash.)

Future Salary Increase Risk:
The Scheme cost is very sensitive to the assumed future salary escalation rates for all final salary defined benefit Schemes. If actual future salary escalations are higher

than that assumed in the valuation actual Scheme cost and hence the value of the liability will be higher than that estimated.

Demographic Risk:

In the valuation of the liability certain demographic (mortality and attrition rates) assumptions are made. The Group is exposed to this risk to the extent of actual
experience eventually being worse compared to the assumptions thereby causing an increase in the scheme cost,

Regulatory Risk:

Gratuity Benefit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended up-to-date). There is a risk of change in the regulations requiring
higher gratuity payments (e.g. raising the present ceiling of Rs. 2 Millions, raising accrual rate from 15/26 etc.)

(vi) Other disclosures

a. Expected contribution for next year (12 months), i.e. 2023-24: Rs. 12.89 Millions

b. Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4.77 years (As at March 31, 2022: 5.21 years)
c. Estimated Cash Flows (Undiscounted) in subsequent years

As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Within 1 year 325 2.68
2 to 5 years 4.89 8.31
6 to 10 years 5.89 9.32
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Note 34: Financial Instruments and fair value measurements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group at the end of the year and the transition date is as under:

Classificati As at As at
AT March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
of the assets / C - 3 -
: & liabilities ALY Fair value ki Fair value
Financial assets amount amount
Investments in equity instruments FVOCI 7.47 7.47 7.47 7.47
Loans Amortised Cost 179.63 179.63 163.49 163.49
Trade receivables Amortised Cost 3.896.56 3,896.56 3,113.89 3,113.89
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised Cost 14.46 14.46 2545 2545
Other balances with bank Amortised Cost 182.08 182.08 107.25 107.25
|Other Financial assets (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 186.53 186.53 31275 312.75
Total T366.73 T3066.73 3,730.30 3,730.30]
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings (including current Amortised Cost 526.21 461.15 310.70 304.92
Short-term borrowings Amortised Cost 1.578.50 1,578.50 1,193.26 1,193.26
Lease liabilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 48.80 48.80 41.12 41.12
Trade payables Amortised Cost 540.29 540.29 649.50 649.50
Other financial liabilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 78.58 78.58 61.02 61.02
Total T.T7I38 T,707.32 TI55.60 111987

(i)

(if)
(iii)

(iv)

v)

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost closely approximate to their fair values as the impact of
discounting on such financial assets or liabilities is not significant considering the instruments matures in a very short time.

Unsecured loans from related parties are repayble on demand and accordingly represents its fair value.

Long-term security deposits are repayable on closure of contracts i.e., repayable on demand and accordingly carrying amount reflect its fair values. The
same can be categorised as Level 3 fair value.

Long-term borrowings carries both fixed and variable rate of interest. For variable interest rate borrowings, carrying amounts are considered to
represent fair value of such borrowings. For fixed rate borrowings fair values have been determined using discounted cash flow approach using the
current interest rates. The fair values of the borrowings can be categorised as Level 2 fair values.

Fair value of investment in equity instruments is determined using the cost method. The fair value of the investments is classified level 3. There is no
significant operations in the investee entity and accordingly there are no significant changes in the fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at
fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

(a) Level 1-Quoted prices in an active market:
liabilities.
(b) Level 2 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with observable inputs:
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
(c) Level 3 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs:

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and financial liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by
prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

There are no transfers between levels 1. 2 and 3 during the vear.
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Note 35: Capital management

Risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:

(a) safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and cquity attributable to equity shareholders of the Group which comprises issued
share capital and accumulated reserves disclosed in the statement of changes in equity and debts appearing as part of the borrowings.

The capital structure of the Group is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day
needs. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity, long term borrowings and short term borrowings.

Note 36: Reconciliation of debts
This section sets out an analysis of debt and the movements therein

Asal Al
M“:,hlsl‘ March 31,2022
Long-term borrowings including current maturities 464.39 310.70
1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares g -
Short-term borrowings 1,556.91 1,193.26
Lease obligations (current and non-current) 48.80 41.12
Z,070.10 T,535.08 |
Long-term 1% Redeemable gl L
borrowings Non Cumulative | Short-term TR ol
including current Preference borrowings (eorentiand non
maturities Shares GurFent)
Net debt as at April 1, 2021 337.97 116.58 902.28 55.35
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken during the year . - o 0.87
Proceeds from borrowings during the year 76.11 - 290.98 -
Interest expense for the year 34.07 11.43 8144 4.73
Interest paid during the year (34.07) (1.50) (81.44) (4.73)
Loss on early redemption of preference share 23.49
Repayment of borrowings / lease liability during the year (103.38) (150.00) - (15.10)
Net debt as at March 31, 2022 3T0.70 - TT93%6 IR )
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken during the year i = = 30.11
Proceeds from borrowings during the year 361.31 - 383.26
Interest expense for the year 26.96 - 112.68 5.01
Interest paid during the year (26.96) - (112.68) (5.01)
Loss on early redemption of preference share - - - 2
Repayment of borrowings / lease liability during the year (143.82) : (22.43)
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 STV 2 1.576.52 I880|
19.61

Note 37: Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Group is exposed primarily to fluctuations in interest rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of
its financial instruments. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group, the Group has risk management policies as
described below:

(A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group
is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions, other financial instruments carried at amortised cost.
Financial instruments that are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loans receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and other bank balances held by the Group. Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of the Group result in material
concentration of credit risk.
The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 4,459.25 Millions and Rs. 3,722.83
Millions as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivables, balances with bank, bank deposits, loans
and other financial assets.
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(B

—

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group through established policy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally carrying 30 to 60 days credit terms. The Group has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer
receivables at various levels within the organisation to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation. The Group periodically assesses the financial
reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and ageing of accounts receivable.

Financial assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk.
The requirement for impairment is analysed at each reporting date. The Group' receivables turnover is quick and historically, there was no significant

defaults on account of those customer in the past. Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal)
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments, Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses. The Group has used a practical expedient by
computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The outstanding receivables are regularly monitored to minimise the credit risk.

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions
and industries and operate in largely independent markets. Of the trade receivables balance, Rs. 2,250.64 Millions in aggregate (Rs. 1,618.54 Millions as at
March 31, 2022) is due from the Group's customers individually representing more than 5% of the total trade receivables balance and accounted for
approximately 57.09% (51.98% as at March 31, 2022 ) of all the receivables outstanding.

Other financial instruments and bank deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group's finance department in accordance with the Group’s policy. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Group’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Group’s Board of
Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make

payments.
Balances with banks and deposits are placed only with highly rated banks/financial institution.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash

or another financial asset.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally

performed in accordance with practice and limits set by the Group.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact
of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
B()rrowings 1,747.54 183.09 123.54 2542 2,079.59
Lease liabilities 24.06 22.59 5.69 2.12 54.46
Trade payables 540.29 = - . 540.29
Other financial liabilities 78.58 E s - 78.58
Total inancial liabilities 2.390.37 205.68 12923 7759 2,752.92
As at March 31, 2022 Lesk than 1 1-2 yeares 2-3 years Mowe than ) Total
year years
Borrowings 1,302.36 1772 64.98 108.43 1,553.49
Lease liabilities 18.46 12.38 12.30 4.50 47.64
Trade payables 649.50 - = = 649.50
Other financial liabilities 61.02 = = = 61.02
Total financial liabilities 203133 J0.10 77.28 1793 231165
/_‘—_"'—\;________‘\
= -~
2PN

< N\
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(C) Market Risk
Interest rate risk

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Group's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the

future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure on financial liabilities

S ar
March 31 Azt
~nna | March 31,2022
Fixed rate borrowings 464.39 71.87
Variable rate borrowings 1,556.91 1.432.09
Total borrowings 202130 T.503.96
Sensitivity to changes in interest rates
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:
For the year ended For the year ended |
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Impact on Impact on
profit before tax Impact on equity| profit before |Impact on equity
tax
Interest expense rates — increase by 50
basis points (50 bps)* 7.78 5.83 7.16 5.36
Interest expense rates — decrease by
50 basis points (50 bps)* 1518 (5'83)l (7.16) (536)

* Holding all other variables constant

Foreign currency risk
The Group did not have any exposure to the foreign currency as at the year ends.
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Note 38: Related Party Disclosures

(a) List of related parties and relationship

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated ctherwise)

Name

Relationship

Mr Rajendra Sethia, Managing Director

Mr Kamshka Sethia, Whole-ime Director

Mrs. Sushila Sethia, Whole-time Director

Mr. Sunil Munsh, Independent Director

Mr Bipradas Bhattacharjee, Independent Director
Mrs. Raynt Mishra, Independent Director

Mr Dinesh Kumar Mantri, CFO

Mrs. Sapna Kochar, CS

Western Skyvilla Private Limited#
Success Supphiers Private Linuted

S M P Properties Private Linnted

F M Carniers Private Limited
Rajendra Sethia Family Trust
Aspective Commodeal Private Limited
Wescon Lumited

Wescon

Shimmer

Western Sparefoot Private Limited
Western Dry Ports Private Limited
Western Group Lumnited

Weslern Pest Solution Private Limited
Weslern Cleaning and Forwarding Agency
Singular Infrastructure Limited
Watercrafl Boltlers LLP

AIKR Infrastructure Limited

Kunal Resources Private Limited
Western Logistics Private Limited
Weslern Ware Housmg Private Limited
Western Apartments Private Limited#
Western Conglomerate Limited
Western Herbicides Private Limited
Weslern Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Gipsy Management Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Kev Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel (w.e.f August 31, 2022)
Key Management Personnel (w e.f June 24, 2022)
Key Management Personnel

Subsidiary Company
Associale Company
Associate Company
Associate Company

i)

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control w.e [ May 4, 2023

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
nterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Lnterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Cnterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnegl has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Fnterprises where hey management personnel has sigmificant influence or control
Lnterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

# Subsequent to March 31, 2023, the Parent Company, pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on May 8.
2023, has sold 1,010,000 shares that 1t held in Western Skyvilla Private Limited to one of its Promoters, Rajendra Sethia. Consequent to the sale of shares, Western
Skyvilla Private Limited, has ceased to be subsidiary of the Purent Company we.f. May 9, 2023. Western Skyvilla Private Limited, will continue to be related party
bemg an enterprise where key management personnel has significant influence or control.

(b) I'ransactions with the related parties

For the yearended | For the year ended
Name of the related parties Nature of transactions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Western Logistics Private Limited Loans given - 009
Gipsy Management Private Limited Loans given 11.21 -
Weslern kraft & Paper Private Limited l.oans given 405 "
Watercrafl Bottlers LLP Loans given - 170
Kunal Resources Private Linited Loans repaid - 151
Western Ware Housing Private Limited Loans repaid 891 107 83
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited Loans repaid - 3147
Western Herbieides Private Limited Loans repaid - 604
Gipsy Management Private Limited Loans repaid - 339
F M Carriers Private Lumited Loans repaid - 1100
Western Logistics Private Linuted LLoans repaid 298 -
Watercraft Bottlers LLP Loans repaid 1.79 -
Rmcﬁdra Sethia Unsecured loan taken 586 425
Western Cleanng and Forwarding Agency Unsecured loan taken -
Gipsy Management Private Lumited Unsecured loan taken 665
Gipsy Management Private Limited Interest on loan 4.06 590
Western Kraft & Paper Private Lunited Interest on loan 016 -
Western Apartments Private Limited Interest on loan 0.09 007
Watereraft Bottlers LLP Interest on loan 0.19 010
Western Logistics Private Linuted Interest on loan 1.13 1 44
Western Ware Housing Private Limited Interest on loan 1.92 8706
Western Conglomerate Limited Interest on loan 1.73 -
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{Amounts in Rs, Millions, unless stated otherwise)

F M Carriers Private Limited Investment in Shares - 11.00
Rajendra Sethia Rent Paid 14 38 942
Western Ware Housing Private Limited Rent Paid 11,39 1139
Sushila Sethia Rent Paid 18 018
Rajendra Sethia Dividend paid 98.36 -
Kanishka Sethia Dividend paid* 000 a
Sushila Scthia Dividend paid* 0.00 -
Rajendra Sethia Directors Remuneration 12.00 640
Kanishka Sethia Directors Remuneration 6.00 3.60
Sushila Scthia Directors Remuneration 6.00 2 80
Sapna Kochar Salary 0.49 044
Dinesh Kumar Mantn Salary 329 .
Bipradas Bhattacharjee, Director Sitting fees 035 030
*Below roundmg olT figure
Additional disclosures pertaining to compensation of key managerial personnel

For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Short-lerm employce benefits 27.78 1324
(b) Post employment benefit # - -
(c) Sitting fecs 0.35 030
28.13 13.54

# below rounding oft number

(¢) Year end balances with related parties

Name of the related parties Nature of balances

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans recetvable
Loans receivable

Western Warchousing Private Limited
Weslern Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Western Conglomerate Lim:ited

Gipsy Management Private Limited
Western Logistics Private Limited
Western Skyvilla Private Limited
Weslern Apartments Private Limited
Watererafl Bottlers LLP Loans receivable
Unsecured Loan payable
Unsecured Loan payable

Mr Rajendra Scthia, Director
Western Cleanng and Forwarding Agency

19.09

4.19
24.69
5998
16.37

1.26

009

23,13
4512
18 33

118

179

(d) Transactions with the related parties elimiated in the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Forthe year ended
March 31, 2022

Western Skyvilla Private Limited Loans given 6.62 6.62
Western Skyvilla Private Limited Interest on loan 0.25 025
(e) Year end balances with related parties eliminated in the consolidated financial statements
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Western Skyvilla Private Limited Investment in Shares 10.10 1010
Loans recelvable 731 6.87

Western Skyvilla Private Limited

Note 39: Segment Disclosures

The Group 1s engaged i providing logistics and allied services to various customers 1n India and 1s a major logistics service provider The performance of the Group
15 assessed and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM?) as a single operating segment and accordingly logistics and allied services 1s the only

aperaling segment

The Group 15 demiciled in India, and also provides services in India The amount of 1ts revenue from external customers split by location of the customers is shown i

the 1able below

Revenue from external customers

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

India

Outside India

16,330.63

14,708 75

Total

16,330.63

14,708.75

There arc no non-current asscts located in foreign countries

Revenues of approximately Rs 4,915 44 Millions (for the year ended March 31, 2022 - Rs. 6,744.34 Milliens) are derived from 2 custom¥ S-{m‘di‘iﬁdual i

revenues of 10% or more

o

ris

« N
oY . i | S 5
¢ KUALATA )
* & J K

.:'\ vl < f

93 --_h.._,d-;/

3 ; couis

&4 coLBt—



WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 40: Corporate social responsibility

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount required to be spent during the year 13.00 9.64
Amount approved by the board to be spent during the period 13.00 9.64
Amount spent during the period on:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset = 5
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 10.00 11.58
Amount of expenditure incurred 10.00 11.58
Shortfall at the end of the period 12.61 9.61
Total of previous year's shortfall 5 4
|Cumulative Shortfall 12.61 9.61
Nature of CSR activities
Activities specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 10.00 11.58
Details of related party transactions - -

Note 41: Undisclosed Income
The Group did not have any undisclosed income in any of the years which was surrendered / disclosed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 42: Details of benami property

The Parent Company and it's Group do not have any benami property held in its name and there have been no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

Note 43: Analytical Ratios

. As at As at

Ratios March 31,2023 March 31,2022 % Change Remarks

Current Ratio 1.91 1.79 6.46%

Debt-equity ratio 0.66 0.58 13.14%
Due to high earnings

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.16 2.10 50.49% available for debt

service

Return on investment 0.06 0.06 -71.27%

Return on Equity Ratio 0.25 0.27 -8.00%

Inventory turnover ratio N/A N/A N/A

‘Trade Receivables turnover ratio 4.66 5.22 -10.72%

Trade payables turnover ratio 23.89 17.92 33.31% TR0 Ao cerriane i irade

payables

Net capital turnover ratio 7.41 8.93 -17.09%

Net profit ratio 0.04 0.04 5.45%

Return on Capital employed 0.30 0.33 -11.08%

] As at As at

Ratios March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 % Change Remarks

Current Ratio 1.79 1.68 6.70%

Debt-equity ratio 0.58 0.69 -15.38%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.10 3.06 -31.25% i i

preference shares

Due to changes on the

Return on investment 0.06 0.04 72.43% g e

of holding of
investments

Return on Equity Ratio 0.27 0.26 3.85%

Inventory turnover ratio N/A N/A

Trade Receivables turnover ratio 322 5.06 3.16%

Trade payables turnover ratio 17.92 11.32 58.28% Du.e 0 fiighet
operational expenses

Net capital turnover ratio 8.93 8.66 3.11%

Net profit ratio 0.04 0.04 3.61%

Return on Capital employed 0.33 0.30 12.65%
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Ratios

Numerator

Denominator

Current Ratio
Debt-equity ratio
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on investment
Return on Equity Ratio

Inventory turnover ratio
Trade Receivables turnover ratio
Trade payables turnover ratio

Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio
Return on Capital employed

Current assets

Total debt

Earnings available for debt service=Net Profit
after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses+Interest
expense

Income generated from invested funds

Net Profits after taxes — Preference Dividend

Not applicable
Revenue from operations
Operational expenses

Revenue from operations

Net Profits after taxes
Earnings before interest and taxes

Current liabilities

Total equity

Debt Service=Interest and lease payments +
Principal Repayments

Average invested funds
Average total equity = (Opening+Closing)/2

Not applicable

Average of trade receivables =
(Opening+Closing)/2

Average of trade payables =

Working capital = Current assets - current
liabilities

Revenue from operations

Capital employed = Networth + Long term
borrowing + Lease liability + Deferred tax
liability

Note 44: Struck off companies

The Group does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

Note 45: Subsequent events
(a) Others

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 8, 2023, the Parent Company sold 1,010,000 shares that it held in
Western Skyvilla Private Limited (The companies subsidiary) to one of the Promoters, Rajendra Sethia. As of the date, the Parent Company does not hold
any share in Western Skyvilla Private Limited and with effect from May 9, 2023, Western Skyvilla Private Limited ceased to be a subsidiary.

(b) On June 9, 2023, the Parent Company filed Draft Red Herring Propepectus in connection with the Initial Public Offer with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India

(¢) There were no significant adjusting events after end of the reporting period which require any adjustment or disclosure in the financial
statements subsequent to the reporting period.
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Note 46: Interests in associates

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at March 31, 2023. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which are held directly by the Group. The country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held

% Vi i . As at
Name of the entity Place of business /"gei:::::r!h'p Relationship Accounting method Mar:lnA;:'ZDB March ;: 2022
Success Suppliers Private Limited India 33.33% Associate Equity Method o 16.49 16.45
SMP Properties Private Limited India 2297% Associate Equity Method 462 462
F M Carriers Private Limited India 31.43% Associate Equity Method 11.10 11.00
32.21 32.07
Success Suppliers Private Limited is ged in the b of wholesale trading activities.

SMP Properties Private Limited in engaged in the business of Consultancy Services.
F.M Carriers Private Limited in engaged in the business of other supporting logistics service.

The associate companies being unlisted entities quoted market prices are not available.

The associates do not have any commitments or contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and April 1, 2020 respectively.

Note 47: Additional information required by Schedule 111 relating entities consolidated as subsidiaries and associates

Net Assets, e m?'. SsteEmous tatal Share in Profit or Loss Share in Other comprehensive income | Share in Total comprehensive income
s As % of As % of
Name of the Entities As, il Amount Af eof Amount consolidated other Amount consolidated total Amount
consolidated net | . o \rillions) | COnSolidated net | o o Millions) | comprehensive | (in Rs.Millions) | comprehensive | (in Rs. Millions)
assets profit or loss 2 3
income income
Holding Company
Western Carriers India Limited 98.68% 3.141.88 99.98% 715.50 100.00% (7.03)| 99.99% 708.47
v
Western Skvvilla Private Limited 0.31% 9.92 0.00% 0.01 0.00% - 0.00% 0.01
Associates
Success Suppliers Pnivate Limited 0.52% 16.49 0.01% 0.04 0.00% - 0.01% 0.04
SMP Properties Private Limited 0.15% 462 0.00% 0.00 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00
F.M Carners Private Limited 0.35% 11.10 0.01% 0.10 0.00% - 0.00%
100.00% 3,184.01 100.00% 715.65 100.00% (7.03)| 100.00% 708.52
Non controling Interests in subsidiary
Western Skyvilla Private Limited 2.06

Note 48: Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The group has not traded or invested in Cropto currency or Virtual Currency durign the financial year.

Note 49: Reclassification

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged/ reclassified wherever necessary. Further, there are no material regroupings/ reclassifications during the year.

Note 50: Approval of financial statements

The Consolidated financial statements has been approved for issue by the resolution of the board of directors dated Augusr 28, 2023

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E
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Partner
Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 28, 2023
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Chief Financial Officer
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